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Results for Announcement to the Market

Dividends

Previous corresponding period	 30 June 2011

None of these dividends are foreign sourced.

$000

Revenue from ordinary activities Up 18% to 103,439

Profit from ordinary activities after tax attributable to members Up 18% to 9,436

Net profit for the period attributable to members Up 18% to 9,436

Amount per security Franked amount per  
security at 30% tax

Interim dividend (fully franked) 1.0 cents 1.0 cents

Final dividend (fully franked) 1.1 cents 1.1 cents

Final dividend details

Record date to determine entitlement to the dividend 17 September 2012

Ex-dividend date 21 September 2012

Payment date for final dividend 12 October 2012

Total dividend payable $2,391,850

A dividend reinvestment plan is not in operation.

Earnings per share Up 16% to 4.3 cents

Highlights

•	F ourth year of consecutive NPAT growth despite traditional markets in which the Group operates  
	 remaining subdued.
•	 Earning accretive acquisitions during the year contributing $16.1 million in revenue and $3.9 million in EBIT  
	 before acquisition related costs:

•	MSS  Fibre Systems – A proven range of fibre optic cables, connectors, jointing tools and  
	 test equipment that extends our offering to both existing and new clients in the fast growing  
	 fibre optic markets.

•	MSS  Power Systems – An industry leader in the engineering, manufacture, test and distribution of the 		
	 largest range of certified lug, link and connector products to power and related markets in Australia.

•	 Extreme Safety – A highly complementary range of arch flash safety clothing and related consumables 		
	 used by all power utilities and related contractors in most installation and maintenance activities  
	 distributed through existing sales channels.
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Net Tangible Asset Backing

Current period Previous corresponding 
period

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary share 6.5 cents 10.4 cents

FINANCIAL SUMMARY 30 June 2012
$000

30 June 2011
$000

Change

Income

Sales revenue 103,215 87,076 18.5%

Cost of goods sold (55,899) (45,924) 21.7%

Gross profit 47,316 41,152 15.0%

Gross profit margin 45.8% 47.2%

EBITDA 17,173 13,983 22.8%

EBITDA margin 16.6% 16.1%

EBIT 14,749 12,289 20.0%

EBIT margin 14.3% 14.1%

NPBT 13,628 11,496 18.5%

NPBT margin 13.2% 13.2%

NPAT 9,436 7,985 18.2%

NPAT margin 9.1% 9.2%

Earnings per share 4.3 cents 3.7 cents 16.2%

Dividends paid 2.0 cents 1.8 cents 11.0%

Dividends announced 1.1 cents 1.0 cents 10%

Cash Flow

Operating cash flow 6,359 14,644 (56.6%)

Operating cash flow pre tax 12,591 16,252 (22.5%)

Financial Position

Net assets 58,132 52,949 9.8%

Net debt (11,017) (1,315) (737.8%)

Reconciliation of profit 30 June 2012 
$000

30 June 2011 
$000

NPAT 9,436 7,985

Income tax expense 4,192 3,511

NPBT 13,628 11,496

Interest revenue (224) (262)

Interest expense 1,345 1,055

EBIT 14,749 12,289

Depreciation and amortisation expense 2,424 1,694

EBITDA 17,173 13,983
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Dear  
Shareholders,

On behalf of the Directors I 
have pleasure in announcing 
the company results for the 
year ending 30 June 2012.

Our company has reported 
a strong result in terms of 
trading performance from 
our historical business and 
also confirmed our business 
acquisition strategies with 
all acquisitions delivering the 
expected baseline results and 
exceeding expectations.  In the 
current economic environment, 
management, led by Brad 
Dowe and his team have 
delivered solid performance for 
shareholders.  Revenue growth 
was 19% with gross profit at 
45.8%.

Operating expenses 
increased 12% over the prior 
corresponding period, largely 
as a result of the businesses 
acquired during the year. 
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, 
Depreciation and Amortisation, 
(EBITDA) were $17.2 million at 
an improved margin of 16.6%

Net Profit After Tax (NPAT) 
was $9.4 million or 4.3 cents 
per share.  This represents an 
improvement of 18% from last 
year’s result.

Legend has achieved steady 
earnings per share growth over 
the past three years averaging 
28% per annum.

Operating cash flow for 
the year was $6.4 million 
compared to $14.6 million for 
the prior year. Tax instalments 
for the year were $6.2 million 
compared to $1.6 million for 
2011, and additional working 
capital requirements of $4.3 
million to fund growth, both 
impacting cash flow for the 
year. 

The company balance sheet 
is in a strong position with total 
net assets (total assets less 
total liabilities) of $58.1 million 
or 26.7 cents per share:  

•	 During the year we incurred 
additional borrowings 
of $9.1 million to fund 
acquisitions. 

•	 Our bank bill facilities with 
the National Australia Bank 
extend to November 2014.

•	 Net bank debt increased 
to $11.0 million from $1.3 

million and is less than 1 
times EBITDA.

•	 Net Debt to shareholder 
funds has increased from 
2% to 19%, remaining at 
conservative levels.

•	 Interest coverage is  
11.0 times, down 
marginally from 11.6 times 
reflecting the improved 
earnings servicing the 
increased debt.

Dividend

In April the company paid an 
interim dividend of 1 cent per 
share.  I am pleased to advise 
that the full year dividend will 
be 1.1 cents per share to all 
shareholders of record on 17 
September 2012 and payable 
on 12 October 2012.

The share price performance 
of Legend Corporation and our 
consistent improvements in 
earnings and dividends is an 
indication of the diversity and 
strength of our business 

model and performance of our 
management team.  Our Total 
Shareholder Return (growth in 
share price plus fully franked 
dividends excluding franking 
credits) over the past three 
years from 1 July 2009 to 1 
July 2012 was 28.3 cents, 
representing a 354% return on 
the 8 cents share price of 1 
July 2009, ranks ‘LGD’ as one 
of the best performing stocks 
on the ASX. 

The dividends we have 
declared represent an 
attractive yield.  Total dividends 
for the year are 2.1 cents 
per share (fully franked), an 
increase of 17% over last year. 
Our return on invested capital 
was a strong 13% percent.

  

FY10 FY12

Legend dividend (CPS)

2.5

2.0

1.5

1.0

0.5

0.0

 FINAL             INTERIM

FY11



12

Operations

The group operations are 
reported in two district 
segments Memory Modules 
and Semiconductors 
and Electrical, Data and 

Communications.  These 
segments share sales and 
operational resources to the 
maximum extent possible.

Memory Modules and 
Semiconductors 

Hendon Semiconductors, 
based in South Australia, 
designs and manufactures 
integrated circuits (IC’s), thick 
film hybrids, ceramic printed 
circuit boards and module 
assemblies and is a leading 
solutions provider to a range of 
markets including automotive, 
medical, semiconductor and 
electrical.

Legend Performance 

Technology manufactures and 
supplies a range of application 
specific memory for information 
technology applications.

Electrical, Data and 
Communications

CABAC (Cable Accessories 
Australia) operates throughout 
Australia and New Zealand 
supplying the electrical 
wholesale industry. The 
business has its national 
product distribution center 
in Seven Hills, Sydney from 
which it supplies a wide range 
of house brand electrical and 
data connectivity products 
as well as manufacturing a 
range of specialised electrical 
connectors

CABAC Power delivers a 
wide range of specialized 
connectors and cable 
assemblies to the power 
distribution market and has 
developed a number of unique 
and specialised products for 
power utilities.

MSS Power, designs and 
manufactures specialised 
heavy duty tools for cable 
cut, crimp and screw, used 
by power utilities and related 
contractors and is highly 
complementary to our leading 
position in the engineering, 
manufacture and distribution of 
power and electrical lugs, links 
and connectors.

MSS Fibre Group (MSF). 
Manufactures and delivers 
high quality fibre optic 
cables provided in drum 
quantities, cut to length and 
pre terminated solutions 
together with related products, 
accessories and engineering 
services.

Extreme Safety, delivers a 
proven range of arc flash 
safety clothing and related 
consumables used by 
power utilities and related 
contractors for installation and 
maintenance.

Legend Performance 

Technology supplies a range of 
computer room products.

Further details of the 
operations and their 
performance is set out in the 
Chief Executives report and in 
Note 26: Operating segments 
of the annual report.

Our Growth 
Strategy

Our business strategy is 
delivering results and we 
remain on track with our 
focus to increase our market 
presence as a specialist 
supplier of electrical 
components and products 
as a solutions company.  In 
line with this strategy our 
growth program included the 
expansion of our business with 
MSS Fibre Group, a leader in 
the supply and engineering of 
Fibre optic solutions, systems 
and products and also MSS 
Power Systems a specialist 
tooling company servicing 
power utilities, Telco utilities 
and related service providers.  
I am pleased to report 
that these businesses are 
performing well and offer 
strong opportunities for further 
growth.  These acquisitions 
have proven to be earnings 
accretive for the Group, 
delivering results at the upper 
end of their earn-out targets.

Our growth program continues 
to include a strong focus 
on our ability to deliver our 
products, improve our client 
and product range and 
leveraging synergies across 
our sales teams, operations 
and warehousing to deliver 
shareholder value.

chairman’s 
report
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Our balance sheet has further 
capacity for growth in both 
product development and 
innovation especially into 
energy efficient products where 
there are exceptional growth 
opportunities.  For example 
in 2011 we established a 
strong position with our 
leading photo electrics street 
light controller product and 
in late 2012 we are releasing  
a range of residential and 
commercial lighting timers 
targeted to lower energy costs 
for consumers.  Our strong 
balance sheet will also enable 
Legend to target acquisition 
growth opportunities in 
complimentary businesses that 
are aligned with our business 
growth strategy.

Corporate 
Governance 
and Board 
Performance

The Board of Legend is 
committed to achieving and 
demonstrating standards of 
corporate governance that are 
best practice and compliant 
with the Australian Securities 
Exchange regulations and 
principles of good corporate 
governance.  Our goal is 
to ensure that we protect 
the rights and interests of 
shareholders and ensure the 
company is properly managed 
through the implementation of 
sound strategies and action 

plans.  We achieve this through 
the management team of our 
company and supervising 
an integrated framework of 
controls over the company’s 
resources to ensure our 
commitment to the highest 
standards of ethical behaviour.

Our Remuneration Report 
is also included within this 
report which outlines the 
Group remuneration policies 
and the senior executive 
remuneration policies and 
compensation. We have a 
long term incentive program 
for Group level executives 
which was approved at the 
Annual General Meeting 
last November that is 
targeted toward the delivery 
of incentives based on a 
compound improvement in 
EBIT performance of higher 
than 10% per annum on a 
compound basis from the 
2011 statutory results.

This year we have reported 
for the first time against new 
gender reporting requirements 
mandated by the Australian 
Securities Exchange.  The 
Company has 42% female 
staff versus 38% in 2011.  
Shareholders should be 
confident that the board and 
management are focused on 
flexible and talented teams that 
can deliver performance, rather 
than a single metric on  

gender balance.

Outlook

Legend has performed ahead 
of its peer group of comparable 
companies which is an 
endorsement of our strategies 
and our management team’s 
ability to deliver improvement 
in shareholder value and 
profitable growth.  Our core 
strategy to maintain and 
extend our leadership remains; 
quality, range, value, availability 
and service.

I am confident that our plans 
to position the business into 
growth areas of the Australian 
economy and improve 
our operations and sales 
performance year on year will 
deliver results for shareholders.

On behalf of the Directors I 
wish to thank Bradley Dowe, 
his senior management team 
and all employees for their 
innovation, commitment and 
customer service focus across 
all segments during the year.  
I also thank our shareholders 
and customers for their 
continuing support for Legend 
Corporation.

Bruce E Higgins 
Chairman

Legend Corporation Limited

15 August 2012
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CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S 
REPORT

Robust Financial Platform	

	 30 June 2012	 30 June 2011	 Change

Sales Revenue	 $103.2m	 $87.1m		  18.5%

Cost of Goods Sold	 $55.9m	 $45.9m		  21.7%

Gross Profit	 $47.3m	 $41.2m		  15.0% 
Gross Profit Margin	 45.8%	 47.2%

EBITDA	 $17.2m	 $14.0m		  22.8% 
EBITDA Margin	 16.6%	 16.1%

EBIT	 $14.7m	 $12.3m		  20.0% 
EBIT Margin	 14.3%	 14.1%

NPBT	 $13.6m	 $11.5m		  18.5% 
NPBT Margin	 13.2%	 13.2%

NPAT	 $9.4m	 $8.0m		  18.2% 
NPAT Margin	 9.1%	 9.2%

Earnings per share	 $0.043	 $0.037		 16.2%

Net Assets per share	 $58.1m	 $52.9m		  9.8%

Net Assets per share	 $0.267	 $0.244		 9.4%

Net Bank Debt	 ($11.0m)	 ($1.3m)		 (737.8%)

Operating Cash Flow	 $6.4m	 $14.6m		  (56.6%)

Operating Cash Flow pre Tax	 $12.6m	 $16.3m		  (22.5%)
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Dear 
Shareholders, 
Legend group revenue 
increased to $103.2 million 
resulting in a full year net profit 
after tax of $9.4 million or 4.3 
cents per share.  This result 
is the strongest in Legend’s 
history and is the fourth year 
on year profit improvement 
since June 2008.

Dividends continue to grow 
with a full year 2.1 cents per 
share (FY11 1.8 cps)

Strong 
Financial 
Performance, 
Strong Outlook
Gross profit margins remained 
strong at 45.8% (FY11 47.2%)

Earnings Before Interest Tax 
Depreciation and Amortisation 
(EBITDA) was up 23% to $17.2 
million (FY11 $14.0 million)

Pre Tax Operating cash flows 
were $12.6 million (FY11 16.3) 
reflecting the investment in 
increased working capital 
associated with business 
expansion.

Net Bank debt increased 
to $11.0 million (FY11 $1.3 
million) as a result of the 
acquisition of new business 
that has been the key driver 
in earnings growth over the  
financial year. Net Bank debt 
of $11.0 million remains at a 
conservative 0.6 x EBITDA.

Net assets of 26.7 cents per 
share are up 9% on prior 
year (FY11 24.4).All divisions 
operated profitably and 
progressed their individual 
growth plans. Market 
conditions in our traditional 
markets remain challenging, 
whilst engineering construction 
markets, the focus of our 
strategic plans, continue to 
display strong growth. 

Legend’s strong balance 
sheet and low levels of debt 
allow for continued organic 
and acquisitive business 
development.

Overview by 
Segment

Electrical, Data and 
Communications 

The division’s earnings in 
the past have been closely 
tied to residential, industrial 
and commercial building 
approvals. These markets 
have remained 

subdued since the global 
financial crisis of 2008. Our 
strategy has been to take 
the engineering capabilities 
from this segment into 
high growth markets with 
the initial focus on power 
generation transmission and 
distribution. 

Each year the power 
division has developed its 
own specialized product 
range and has extended 
client base into rail and 
engineering construction.

Revenue for the segment 
increased by 31% to $90.7 
million (2011: $69.1 million), 
with growth from our pre-
acquisition business of 8% 
to $74.6 million, $9.3 million 
from MSF, $5.3 million from 
MSP and $1.5 million from 
Extreme Safety. EBITDA 
for the segment grew by 
74% to $14.1 million (2011: 
$8.0).

Whilst the acquisitions 
of MSS Fibre Systems, 
MSS Power Systems and 
Extreme Safety provided 
a substantial contribution 
towards the growth in 
earnings, it is pleasing 
to note that over 20% 
of the year’s growth was 
contributed by the  
pre-acquisition business.

Memory Modules and 
Semiconductors 

The managed withdrawal 
from sales of Hard disk drives 
combined with a contraction in 
demand from a major export 
client had a considerable 
adverse impact on revenue 
for this division. In addition 
flooding in Thailand and the 
after effects of the tsunami 
in Japan, impacted both 
supply of some components 
and demand from some 
clients located in the same 
regions, across the period.  
Earnings for the second half 
of the year were lower with 
full year’s EBITDA down 
46.5% to $3,166,000 (2011: 
$5,921,000).

Development of new products 
remains the key focus with 
a number of these already 
released to market through our 
existing sales channels.  Due to 
the dates of release being late 
in the year, the full impact on 
earnings will not be seen until 
the new financial year. 

Innovation   
 
I am confident that our 
investment in design and 
development of products 
targeting the growth areas 
of the Australian economy 
will allow us to maintain our 
innovation leadership and 
deliver continued positive 
results for our shareholders. 
We have focused our 
development on energy 
efficient and energy saving 
products for lighting, switching 
and power management for 
sale through both our electrical 
and power divisions. 

Net Profit After Tax
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CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE 
OFFICER’S 
REPORT

Financial 
Highlights

 

 

 

CAPEX and Depreciation
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 capex	      	      depreciation and amortisation

Annual capital expenditure requirements were approximately $2 
million consisting predominantly of maintenance and replacement 
of materials handling equipment such as racking and office 
equipment. The major capital project during the 2012 financial year 
related to information technology upgrades including investment in 
our enterprise system to integrate the Group’s financial reporting 
and inventory systems.  This investment builds a platform for future 
growth.

Depreciation and amortisation for this financial year included 
$677,000 in amortisation of intangible assets acquired as a result of 
the MSS acquisitions. 
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Revenue and Gross Profit

 Revenue 	                    Gross Profit	            Gross Profit Margin

Sales revenue for the period of $103.2 million, up 19% on the prior 
year.  

Acquisitions during the year contributed $16.1 million in revenue, 
the pre-acquisition electrical, data and communications business 
contributed $74.6 million (8% up on the prior year), while memory 
modules and semiconductors contributed $13.6 million. 

Revenues from memory and semiconductors were down $4.8 
million on the prior year, a result of a managed exit from hard drive 
sales and reduced demand from a major export client.

Gross profit for the period was $47.3 million, up 15% on the prior 
year, with Gross Profit Margins maintained at a solid 45.8%.
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Average Monthly Overhead Expenditure

 average monthly expenses	                             overheads as a % of gross profit

Overhead costs increased by $3.3 million to $30.4 million in 2012 
or 64% of gross profit. 

This increase is directly attributable to the MSS acquisitions with 
overhead costs in the pre-acquisition business unchanged with 
increased wages being offset by reductions in other overheads.

Foreign exchange translation losses were $255,000, down from 
$693,000 in the prior year, and bad debts were $90,000, down 
from $421,000 in the 2011.

T
im

es

Debt to EBITDA Coverage
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 Gross debt to ebitda 	      net bank debt to ebitda

EBITDA growth in the pre-acquisition electrical, data and 
communications business was more than offset by a reduced result 
in the memory modules and semiconductors segment such that 
the pre-acquisition business EBITDA remained flat year on year. 

$9.1 million in bank debt was drawn down on 1 July 2011 to fund 
the MSS acquisitions. Additional working capital requirements saw 
total net debt reach $11.0 million at 30 June 2012, a modest 0.6 
times EBITDA.
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Acquisitions

Management devotes 
significant effort and 
resource to the selection and 
appropriate engagement 
with potential acquisition 
targets aligned with strategic 
requirements that are accretive 
to earnings per share and 
add long term value to our 
business.

During 2012 Legend acquired 
the assets of Silglen Pty Ltd 
trading as Extreme Safety 
bringing a proven range of 
arc flash safety clothing and 
related consumables used 
by all Power utilities and 
related contractors in most 
installation and maintenance 
activities.  This range is highly 
complementary to our existing 
sales and distribution activities.

The Group also made two 
important acquisitions;

On the 1st of July 2011 
Legend acquired MSS Power, 
a Melbourne based company 
expert in the design and 
manufacture of specialised 
heavy duty tools for cable 
cut, crimp and screw, used 
by power utilities and related 
service providers.

This premium tool 
manufacturer is highly 
complementary to our leading 
position in the engineering, 
manufacture and distribution of 
power and electrical lugs, links 
and connectors.

On the 1st of July 2011 
Legend also acquired MSS 
Fibre Group (MSF). A strategic 
acquisition that significantly 
enhances Legend’s value chain 
with a range of high quality 
fibre optic cables provided in 

drum quantities, cut to length 
and pre terminated solutions 
together with related products, 
accessories and engineering 
services.   

MSF is highly complementary 
to our electrical and power 
divisions, and expected to 
benefit from the rapidly growing 
fibre market levered by the roll 
out of the National Broadband 
Network.

The results from our two 
major acquisitions during 
the year of MSS Fibre Group 
(MSF) and MSS Power 
Systems (MSP) were sound, 
contributing notably to the 
earnings growth of the Group.  
Excluding integration costs 
of approximately $0.6 million, 
both entities performed at the 
upper end of their earn-out 
targets.

MSP achieved an EBIT of 
$1.13 million for the year 
against a target of $1.1 million.  
Total consideration payable 
to date has been an initial 
payment of $3.3 million and a 
first deferred payment of $1.1 
million payable by the end of 
August 2012.  A maximum final 
payment of $1.1 million will 
be payable August 2013 on 
achievement of an EBIT of no 
less than $1.375 million for the 
2013 financial year.

MSF performed just under 
their upper end EBIT target 
of $2.125 million with a result 
of $2.025 million.  In addition 
to the initial payment of $5.75 
million, a final payment of 
$2.473 will be made before the 
end of August 2012 bringing 
total consideration paid on 
acquisition to $8.223 million.

 continuing npat	     operating cash flows
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Pre-tax operating cash flows were $12.6 million (2011: $16.3 
million).  Tax paid for the year was $6.2 million (prior year $1.6 
million). 

With the expansion of the business, working capital requirements 
increased from $23.1 million in 2011 to $29.4 million.  

Stock days of 114 (prior year 120), Debtor days 56 (prior year 50), 
Creditor days 54 (prior year 62).
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People Talent, 
Workplace 
Environment and 
Safety

We recognise that our people 
are our most important and 
fundamental asset. Securing 
and retaining the very best 
people talent is critical to both 
the maintenance and growth of 
our business.

The company’s employment 
policies include:

-	 Recruitment programs 
are offered to internal 
candidates as well as 
external advertising. 

-	 Internal staff are 
offered training and are 
encouraged to apply for 
more senior roles and are 
considered on merit along 
with external applicants;

-	 Flexible work options are 
made available to all staff 
where possible;

-	 Sophisticated crèche 
facilities on site are 
available to parents in 
NSW and SA locations 
allowing parents to reenter 
the workplace as soon as 
practical;

-	 School holiday care 
programs are provided 
for the children of working 
parents.

-	 An annual salary review is 
provided adjusted to reflect 
CPI, responsibility and 
external market review  

-	 Most staff have incentive 
programs to reward 
outcomes aligned with 
company strategy.

-	 Optional Gym programs 
are offered in NSW and SA.

Management is committed to 
the continual improvement of 
health and safety through the 
implementation of training, 
safety systems, monitoring 
and correction across all our 
workplaces.  

Company 
Leadership

I am very pleased to report 
that we have added important 
new strength to our executive 
management team with the 
appointment of;

Edward Fyvie to the role of 
General Manager Sales Power. 
Edward was previously the 
CEO of AEM a subsidiary of 
US parent PLP; engineering 
and manufacturing power 
switch yard systems with many 
customer and engineering 
parallels to our Power division.

Mark Phillips to the role of 
General Manager Sales Cabac. 
Mark joins us in September 
from his role as General 
Manager Sales and Customer 
Relationships at Hager B&R a 
successful supplier of electrical 
protection equipment and 
switch board enclosures 
with many service and client 
parallels to our CABAC 
business.

John Murtagh to the role of 

National Quality Assurance 
Manager. John joins us from 
similar roles at medical device 
manufacturers including 

Resmed and Cochlear.

Gender 
Diversity

Legend promotes gender 
balance within the workforce. 
Whilst the company is 
successfully overseen by only 
three directors who provide a 
skill set which is appropriate 
for the company’s needs, there 
is a significant involvement 
of both female and male 
employees at each level of 
operations.

Overall, the objective is for 
the company to achieve the 
current national benchmark 
of women comprising 46% of 
the workforce. The company 
currently employs 42% women 
compared with 38% in 2011.

The current gender balance is 
as per the table below:

Looking 
Forward : A 
platform for 
Growth

Our core strategy to maintain 
and extend our leadership 
in our respective markets 
remains; quality, range, value, 
availability and service. We will 
continue our focus on business 
development to meet customer 
needs; bringing new products 
to market, expanding our 
market reach and delivering 
new service initiatives. Each of 
our businesses has a specific 
plan to deal with the challenges 
we see ahead and to realise 
growth.

While our traditional markets 
remain challenging we have 
successfully dealt with what 
has been a contracting market 
in residential commercial and 
light industrial construction 
by the expansion of product 
range, sales geography and 
basic sales value drivers 
including stock availability, 
client contact and other 
marketing initiatives.

	 2012	 2011 

	 Percentage of	 Percentage OF

	Emp loyment	Emp loyment

	 Female	 Male	 Female	 Male

Board	 0	 100	 0	 100

Management,  
Finance, 
Administration	 40%	   60%	 55%	 45%

Other	 45%	   55%  	 35%	 65%

Total	 42%	   58% 	 38%	 62%
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Export markets also 
remain challenging, we are 
successfully bringing new 
products to the domestic 
market to offset declines in 
demand from some export 
clients. 

Increasing costs of foreign 
labour that are key inputs to 
our component costs together 
with rising transport costs 
internationally and domestically 
are all overshadowed by 
the ongoing skills shortage 
in both Australia and New 
Zealand that is increasing the 
cost of hiring and retaining 
key staff. Consequently we 
see significant increases in 
the cost of doing business 
in the coming years as a key 
challenge.

We continue to invest in 
the future, particularly in 
the areas of enterprise and 
quality systems, people talent, 
research and development 
and marketing programs 
and while the Group has not 
forecast earnings for this 
financial year; we are confident 
that the company is well 
positioned within the markets 
we serve and that our very 
strong balance sheet, prudent 
financial management and 
continued focus on organic 
and acquisitive growth will 
deliver further growth in both 
sales and profits.

I would like to extend 
my thanks to our client 
business partners, suppliers, 
shareholders and board 
members.

I make particular mention 

of the value, commitment 
and passion that our team 
members across all our 
business bring to their work. 
It is their effort that underpins 
the successful outcomes of 
our business and I take this 
opportunity to thank them all.

  

Yours Sincerely

Brad Dowe 
Chief Executive Officer & 
Managing Director 
Legend Corporation Limited

15 August 2012
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The Board of Legend 
Corporation Limited (Legend) 
seeks to practice the highest 
ethical and commercial 
standards while executing its 
responsibilities in directing 
the business and affairs of 
the Company on behalf of its 
shareholders.

The Board of Legend has 
considered the principles 
of good corporate 
governance and best 
practice recommendations 
as published by the ASX 
Corporate Governance 
Council (ASXCGC) in its 2nd 
edition of the Principles and 
Recommendations with 2010 
Amendments. ASX Listing Rule 
4.10.3 requires the Company 
to disclose the extent to 
which it follows or diverges 
from these best practice 
recommendations in its Annual 
Report.

This report discloses corporate 
governance practices Directors 
would like to highlight to 
stakeholders.

Additional information relating 
to corporate governance 
practices that the company 
has adopted can be found on 
the company’s web site:  
www.legendcorporate.com 

The Role of 
the Board & 
Management

The company has formalised 
and disclosed the roles and 
responsibilities of the board 
and those delegated to senior 
management.

The Board of the company 
is responsible for the overall 
corporate governance of the 
Legend Group, including its 
ethical behavior, strategic 
direction, establishing goals for 
management and monitoring 
the achievement of those 
goals with a view to optimising 
company performance and 
maximising shareholder value.

The role of management is to 
support the Chief Executive 
Officer and implement 
the running of the general 
operations and financial 
business of the company, in 
accordance with the delegated 
authority of the Board.

Full details of the matters 
reserved to the board and 
to senior management are 
available on the company’s 
web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

Scheduled meetings of the 
Board are held at least eight 
times a year and the Board 
meets on other occasions 
to deal with matters that 
require attention between 
scheduled meetings. 
The responsibility for the 
operation and administration 
of the consolidated entity is 
delegated by the Board to the 
Chief Executive Officer.

The Board is responsible for:

•	 Setting the strategic 
direction of the company 
and establishing goals 
to ensure these strategic 
objectives are met;

•	 Appointing the Chief 
Executive Officer, setting 
objectives for the Chief 
Executive Officer  and 
reviewing performance 
against those objectives, 
ensuring appropriate 
policies and procedures 
are in place for recruitment, 
training, remuneration and 
succession planning;

•	 Monitoring financial 
performance including 
approval of the annual 
and half-yearly financial 
reports and liaison with the 
company’s auditors;

•	 Ensuring that risks facing 
the company and its 
controlled entities have 
been identified ensuring 
that appropriate and 
adequate controls, 
monitoring and reporting 
mechanisms are in place;

•	 Receiving detailed briefings 
from senior management 
on a regular basis during 
the year;

•	 Approving the Boards of 
Directors of subsidiary 
companies; and

•	 Ensuring the company 
complies with the law and 
conforms to the highest 
standards of financial and 
ethical behavior. 

Legend has obligations to its 
stakeholders to ensure the 
company is managed with 
appropriate due diligence and 
that all necessary processes 
are implemented to minimise 
risk and maximise business 
opportunities.

To this end, all commercial 
arrangements, capital 
expenditure, operational 
expenditure and other 
commitments are appropriately 
documented and have been 
authorised by either the Chief 
Executive Officer or the board 
as appropriate. 
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The composition of the Board 
is determined in accordance 
with the Company’s 
constitution and the following 
principles and guidelines:

•	 The Board should 
comprise of at least three 
Directors with at least two 
Non-Executive Directors;

•	 The Board should 
comprise of Directors 
with an appropriate range 
of qualifications and 
expertise; and

•	 The Board should meet 
formally at least eight times 
per annum and informally 
on an as required basis 
with all Directors being 
made aware of, and having 
available, all necessary 
information, to participate 
in an informed discussion 
of all agenda items.

Directors in 
Office

At the date of this statement 
the following directors are 
considered independent by the 
Board:

The skills, experience, 
expertise and tenure of each 
director are disclosed in the 
Directors’ Report within this 
Annual Report.

Director 
Independence

The board considers two 
of Legend’s directors as 
independent under the 
guidelines; that is Chairman 
Bruce Higgins and non-
executive director Ian Fraser.

In assessing the independence 
of directors, the board follows 
the ASX guidelines as set out:

An independent director is a 
non-executive director (ie is 
not a member of management) 
and:

•	 is not a substantial 
shareholder of the 
company or an officer of, 
or otherwise associated 
directly with, a substantial 
shareholder of the 
company; 

•	 within the last three years 
has not been employed in 
an executive capacity by 
the company or another 
group member, or been a 
director after ceasing to 
hold any such employment; 

•	 within the last three years 
has not been a principal 
of a material professional 
adviser or a material 
consultant to the company 
or another group member, 
or an employee materially 
associated with the service 
provided; 

•	 is not a material supplier or 
customer of the company 
or other group member, or 
an officer of or otherwise 
associated directly or 
indirectly with a material 
supplier or customer; 

•	 has no material contractual 
relationship with the 
company or another group 
member other than as a 
director of the company; 

•	 has not served on the 
board for a period which 
could, or could reasonably 
be perceived to, materially 
interfere with the director’s 
ability to act in the best 
interests of the company;  
and

•	 is free from any interest 
and any business or other 
relationship which could, 
or could reasonably be 
perceived to, materially 
interfere with the director’s 
ability to act in the best 
interests of the company.

Mr Dowe is not considered to 
be independent because he is 
both an executive director and 
a substantial shareholder in the 
company. 

Through the Nominations 
Committee, which has met 
during the current financial year 
to consider appointments to 
management and the board, 
directors have considered 
the balance of skills and 
experience required of board 
members for the size and state 
of development of Legend. 
The board believes that it has 
the right numbers and skill 
sets within its board members 
for the current size of the 
company and is confident that 
each non-executive director 
brings independent judgement 
to bear on board decisions. 
If additional skill sets are 
considered to be necessary, 
the board seeks candidates 
from the wider market and 
chooses the most appropriate 
person for the role required.

Name	 Position	 Independent

Bruce Higgins	 Chairman & Non-Executive Director	 Yes

Bradley Dowe	 Chief Executive Officer	 No

Ian Fraser	 Non-Executive Director	 Yes
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Chairman and 
Chief Executive 
Officer

The ASXCGC 
Recommendations 
recommend that the 
chairperson be independent. 
Mr Bruce Higgins is considered 
independent by the board 
under the guidelines as set out.

The roles of chairman and 
Chief Executive Officer are 
not exercised by the same 
individual.

Mr Bradley Dowe is the 
Chief Executive Officer of the 
company.

Appointment to 
the Board

The Board has appointed 
a Nomination Committee 
to identify and recommend 
potential director 
appointments. Where a casual 
vacancy arises during the year, 
the Committee has procedures 
to select the most suitable 
candidate with the appropriate 
experience and expertise 
to ensure a balanced and 
effective board. Any director 
appointed during the year to 
fill a casual vacancy or as an 
addition to the current board, 
holds office until the next 
Annual General Meeting and is 
then eligible for re-election by 
the shareholders.

A copy of the Nomination 
Committee’s Charter is 
available on the company’s 
web site at www.
legendcorporate.com.  

New directors receive a letter 
of appointment which sets out 
the terms of their appointment.  
On appointment, an induction 
program is available to 
directors that include one-on-
one sessions with members of 
the senior management team.

Evaluation 
of Senior 
Executives

Senior executives, including 
the Chief Executive Officer 
have a formal job description 
and letter of appointment 
describing their term of office, 
duties, rights, responsibilities 
and entitlements upon 
termination.

The performance of senior 
executives is reviewed 
annually before the budgets 
are approved for the next 
financial year. This process is a 
formal one with the executive’s 
performance assessed against 
company, division and personal 
benchmarks. Benchmarks 
are agreed with the respective 
senior executives and reviews 
are based upon the degree 
of achievement against those 
benchmarks.

Induction procedures are in 
place to allow new senior 

executives to participate fully 
and actively in management 
decision-making. The induction 
program includes orientation of:

•	 The company’s financial 
position, strategies, 
operations and risk 
management policies; and

•	 The respective rights, 
duties, responsibilities and 
roles of the board and 
senior executives.

A performance evaluation for 
senior executives has taken 
place in the reporting period 
and was in accordance with 
the process disclosed.

Ethical Business 
Practices

The Company has adopted a 
Code of Conduct to maintain 
confidence in the company’s 
integrity, its legal obligations 
and the expectations of its 
stakeholders. The company is 
committed to being a socially 
responsible corporate citizen, 
using honest and fair business 
practices, to act in the best 
interests of clients so as to 
achieve the best outcome for 
shareholders.

The Board has procedures 
in place for reporting any 
matters that may give rise to 
unethical practices or conflicts 
between the interests of a 
director or senior executive and 
those of the company. These 

procedures are reviewed as 
required by the board. To this 
end, the company has adopted 
a Conflict of Interest Policy 
that clarifies the processes for 
directors and senior executives 
to determine and disclose when 
a conflict of interest exists.

The Code of Conduct is 
available on the company’s 
web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

Shareholding 
and Trading

The Board encourages 
directors and senior executives 
to own shares in the company 
to further link their interests 
with the interests of all 
shareholders. Trading of 
shares by directors or senior 
executives is prohibited under 
certain circumstances and as 
described in the ASX Listing 
Rules and during certain 
periods of the financial year.  
A director or senior executive 
must not deal in the company 
shares at any time when 
he or she has unpublished 
information which, if generally 
available, might affect the 
share price. Directors and 
senior executives are required 
to first obtain consent from 
the Chairman or Company 
Secretary before dealing.  

The Trading Policy is available 
at the company’s web site at 
www.legendcorporate.com
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Safeguard 
Integrity

The Board has established an 
Audit and Risk Management 
Committee comprised of the 
two non-executive directors.  
This committee operates 
under a charter to enable 
it to perform its role and 
responsibilities. The Charter is 
available at the company’s web 
site at www.legendcorporate.
com. Where considered 
appropriate, the company’s 
external auditors and the 
company’s management are 
invited to attend meetings. The 
members of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee are:

Mr Ian Fraser (chairman) and 
Mr Bruce Higgins.

As the company has only 
three directors, of which 
one is the managing director 
who is not independent, the 
company does not comply with 
Recommendation 4.2 that the 
committee should comprise 
three members.

The qualifications of members 
of the committee together with 
their attendances at committee 
meetings is disclosed in the 
Directors’ Report within this 
Annual Report.

The role of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee is 
to assist the board fulfill its 
responsibilities in relation to the 
identification of the areas of 

significant business risks and 
the monitoring of the following:

•	 Effective management 
of financial and other 
business risks;

•	 Reliable management 
reporting;

•	 Compliance with laws and 
regulations in respect to 
financial reporting;

•	 Maintenance of effective 
and efficient audits;

•	 Meeting with external 
auditors on a twice-yearly 
basis and informally as 
circumstances require; and

•	 Recommending to the 
board the appointment, 
rotation, removal and 
remuneration of the 
external auditors, and 
review their terms of 
engagement, and the 
scope and quality of the 
audit. Periodically, the Audit 
and Risk Management 
Committee reviews the 
appointment of the external 
audit engagement partners 
using a formal process of 
evaluation to determine the 
most appropriate level of 
skills and experience to suit 
the size and complexity of 
the company.

The Audit and Risk 
Management Committee 
provides the board with 
additional assurances 

regarding the reliability of 
financial information for 
inclusion in the financial 
statements. To that extent, 
the Chief Executive Officer 
and the Chief Financial 
Officer are required to 
declare to the board that in 
their opinion the Financial 
Statements and notes to the 
Accounts within the Annual 
Report are in accordance 
with the Corporations Act 
2001, comply with the 
Accounting Standards and 
the Corporations Regulations 
2001 and give a true and fair 
view of the financial position of 
the company and are based 
upon a sound system of risk 
management and internal 
compliance and control prior 
to the signing of the Directors’ 
Declaration in the Annual 
Report.

The committee is chaired by an 
independent chair who is not 
the chairman of the board.

Independent 
Advice

The Board recognises that 
in certain circumstances 
individual directors may 
need to seek independent 
professional advice, at the 
expense of the company. 
Any advice so received will 
be made available to other 
directors.

Timely and 
Balanced 
Disclosure

The board recognises the 
need to comply with ASX 
Listing Rule 3.1 concerning 
continuous disclosure. 

At each meeting of directors, 
consideration is given as to 
whether notice of material 
information concerning the 
company, including its financial 
position, performance, 
ownership and governance 
has been made available to all 
investors.

The Continuous Disclosure 
Policy also requires senior 
executives in possession of 
disclosable information to 
comply with that policy.

The Continuous Disclosure 
Policy is available on the 
company’s web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

Communication 
with 
Shareholders

The board aims to ensure that 
shareholders, on behalf of 
whom they act, are informed 
of all major developments 
affecting the company’s 
activities and its state of affairs, 
including information necessary 
to assess the performance of 
the directors.
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Communication with 
shareholders is achieved 
through the distribution of the 
following information:

•	 The Annual Report 
distributed to shareholders;

•	 The Half Yearly Report 
which is available on the 
company’s web site;

•	 The Annual General 
Meeting and other 
meetings called to obtain 
shareholder approval 
for board action as 
appropriate. Shareholders 
are encouraged to attend 
and participate at the 
company’s Annual General 
Meeting and other General 
Meetings;

•	 Letters to shareholders 
when considered to 
be appropriate and 
informative;

•	 Announcements to the 
Australian Securities 
Exchange; and

•	 Investor information 
through the Company’s 
internet portal at  
www.legendcorporate.com

The Company strives to ensure 
that company announcements 
via the ASX are made in a 
timely manner, are factual, do 
not omit material information 

and are expressed in a clear 
and objective manner.

The Communications Policy  
is available at the  
company’s web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

Shareholders’ 
Role

The shareholders of the 
Company are responsible 
for voting on the election of 
directors at the Annual General 
Meeting in accordance with the 
constitution.

All directors (other than the 
Chief Executive Officer) are 
subject to re-election by 
rotation, no later than every 
three years.

The Annual General Meeting 
also provides shareholders with 
the opportunity to express their 
views on matters concerning 
the company and to vote on 
other items of business for 
resolution by shareholders.

The company‘s auditor, Grant 
Thornton Audit Pty Ltd, make 
available a partner of the 
firm, to be in attendance at 
the Annual General Meeting 
and to be available to answer 
shareholder questions in 
relation to the audit.

Risk 
Management

The entire board is responsible 
for overseeing the risk 
management function.  The 
company believes that it is 
crucial for all board members 
to be a part of the process and 
as such has established risk 
management as a component 
of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee.

The board is responsible 
for ensuring the risks and 
opportunities are identified on a 
timely basis. 

The board has a number of 
mechanisms in place to ensure 
the management’s objectives 
and activities are aligned with 
the risks identified by the 
Committee.  These include the 
following:

•	 Implementation of board 
approved operating plans 
and budgets;

•	 Board monitoring of 
progress against these 
budgets, including 
the monitoring of key 
performance indicators of 
both a financial and non 
financial nature; and

•	 The establishment of 
committees to report on 
specific risk as identified.

Internal Risk 
Management 
System 
Compliance

Management is accountable 
to the Chief Executive Officer 
to ensure that operating 
efficiency, effectiveness of risk 
management procedures, 
internal compliance control 
systems and controls 
and policies are all being 
monitored. Management has 
designed and implemented a 
risk management and internal 
control system to manage 
the company’s material 
business risks and reports to 
the board at each meeting on 
the effective management of 
those risks. The company has 
identified a series of operational 
risks which it believes to be 
inherent in the industry in which 
the company operates. These 
include:

•	 Changed operating, market 
or regulatory environments;

•	 Fluctuations in demand 
volumes;

•	 Fluctuations in exchange 
rates; and

•	 Increasing costs of 
operations.
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These risk areas are provided 
here to assist investors better 
understand the nature of the 
significant risks faced by the 
company.

The board requires the Chief 
Executive Officer and Chief 
Financial Officer every half 
year to provide a statement 
confirming that a sound system 
of risk management and 
internal control is in place and 
that the system is operating 
effectively in all material 
respects in relation to financial 
risks. The board has received 
that assurance.

The Risk Management Policy 
is available at the company’s 
web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com 

Monitoring 
Performance

The Board and senior 
management monitor the 
performance of all divisions 
through the preparation 
of monthly management 
accounts. The monthly 
management accounts 
are prepared using accrual 
accounting techniques 
and report each business 
unit’s result as contribution 
after overhead allocation. 
These monthly management 
accounts are compared to 
monthly budgets, which 
have been set allowing for 
the seasonality of anticipated 

revenues and costs in each of 
the divisions.

The monitoring of the 
company’s performance by 
the board and management 
assists in identifying the correct 
allocation of resources and 
staff to maximise the overall 
return to shareholders.

A performance evaluation 
for senior management was 
undertaken during the year 
and was in accordance with 
the process developed by the 
board for that purpose.

Details of the structure of non-
executive directors’ and senior 
executives’ remuneration are 
included in the Remuneration 
Report within the Directors’ 
Report in this Annual Report.

During the year the board 
undertook a performance 
review of the board, its 
committees and its directors, 
managed by the chair of the 
Remuneration Committee. 
The conclusions of the self 
assessment of the board’s 
performance during the 
previous year and any 
recommendations for 
improvement which become 
apparent from that review, are 
discussed by the board.

The performance evaluation 
was undertaken using the 
process disclosed above.

Nomination and 
Remuneration

Nomination Committee

The Board has a Nomination 
Committee comprising the  
two non-executive Directors, Mr 
Bruce Higgins (Chairman) and 
Mr Ian Fraser, and Managing 
Director Mr Bradley Dowe. 
Their attendances at committee 
meetings is disclosed in the 
Directors’ Report within this 
Annual Report.

The role of the Nomination 
Committee is to make 
recommendations to the board 
on the following matters:

•	 Determine the appropriate 
size and composition of the 
board;

•	 Determine the terms and 
conditions of appointment 
to and retirement from the 
board;

•	 Develop appropriate criteria 
for board membership;

•	 Reviewing membership 
of the board and 
proposing candidates for 
consideration by the board; 
and

•	 Arranging a review of the 
board’s own performance.

The committee met during the 
year and considered that for 
the size of the company and 
the state of its development, 
the number of directors 
and their level of skills and 
experience was appropriate. 
The committee is aware of 
the need to continually assess 
the skills available to the 
board. Where additional skills 
are considered necessary, 
candidates for director are 
sought from the wider market 
place with a view to selecting 
the most appropriate candidate 
for the chosen role on the 
board.  

The Nomination Committee 
Charter is available at the 
company’s web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

Remuneration 
Committee

The Board has a Remuneration 
Committee comprising the two 
non-executive Directors, Mr 
Bruce Higgins (Chairman) and 
Mr Ian Fraser

Chief Executive Officer, 
Bradley Dowe, attends the 
Remuneration Committee 
considerations as and when 
appropriate.

Details of the attendance 
of directors at committee 
meetings is disclosed in the 
Directors’ Report in this  
Annual Report.

27
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The role of the Remuneration 
Committee is to determine 
the company’s remuneration 
plans, policies and practices, 
including compensation 
arrangements for the 
non-executive directors, 
executive directors, Chief 
Executive Officer and 
senior executives. It is also 
responsible for considering 
general remuneration policies 
and practices, recruitment 
and termination policies and 
superannuation requirements.

The company has a policy to 
preclude its executives from 
entering into transactions to 
limit their economic risk from 
investing in company shares, 
options or rights where thos 
investments are unvested and 
has made executives aware of 
their obligations in relation to 
financial commitments against 
shares issued under the 
executive securities plan and 
has requested that they take 
sufficient professional advice 
in relation to their individual 
financial position. 

The Remuneration Committee 
Charter is available at the 
company’s web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com

There are no retirement 
schemes or retirement benefits 
other than statutory benefits for 
non-executive directors.

Remuneration 
Consultants

The company does not employ 
remuneration consultants to 
assist with the evaluation of 
the remuneration of its senior 
executives and directors 
and relies instead on market 
evaluation and peer company 
analysis.

During the year, KPMG 
and Minter Ellison Lawyers 
were invited to assist in the 
drafting of the company’s 
newly introduced Group 
Level Incentive Plan (GLIP) 
to ensure that the wishes 
of the board could be met. 
The GLIP was ultimately 
approved by shareholders at 
the Annual General Meeting 
held on 15 November 2011. 
No consideration of the levels 
of remuneration or eligibility to 
become a member of the GLIP 
was discussed during this 
process.  Further disclosure 
in relation to the KPMG 
consultation is included in the 
Remuneration Report in this 
Annual Report.

Gender Diversity

The board recognizes that it 
is appropriate to have gender 
diversity throughout the 
company to assist in balancing 
overall priorities and skills 
for the company as a whole. 
Further disclosures in relation 
to gender diversity are included 
in the Chief Executive Officer’s 
Report in this Annual Report. 
The Legend Diversity Policy is 
available at the company’s  
web site at  
www.legendcorporate.com  

27
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The Directors of Legend 
Corporation Limited (‘Legend’ 
or ‘Consolidated Group’) 
present their Report together 
with the financial statements of 
the consolidated entity, being 
Legend (‘the Company’) and its 
controlled entities (‘the Group’) 
for the financial year ended  
30 June 2012.

Directors 
Details

The following persons were 
directors of Legend during or 
since the end of the financial 
year; 

Bruce E Higgins  
BEng, CPEng, MBA, FAICD

Chairman / Independent Non-
Executive Director

Director since October 2007

Chairman of the Remuneration 
Committee and Nominations 
Committee and Member of the 
Audit and Risk Management 
Committee

Mr. Higgins is an experienced 
non-executive director, 
chairman and former chief 
executive of both private 
and listed companies within 
Australia and internationally, 
spanning 25 years in diverse 
companies ranging from 
engineering, manufacturing 
and professional services to 
larger contracting businesses.  
Bruce was the recipient of the 
Ernst & Young “Entrepreneur 
of the Year” award in the 
Southern California region, 
June 2005.

Directorships held in other 
listed entities:

•	 Chairman of Q Technology 
Group Limited (appointed 
December 2010)

•	 Feore Limited (appointed 
December 2011)

Previous directorships held in 
the last three years:

•	 Chairman of TSV Holdings 
Limited (appointed July 
2007, resigned August 
2010)

•	 Global Heath Limited 
(appointed January 2010, 
resigned November 2010

	 Interest in shares: 
• 3,643,850 shares

	 Interest in options: 
• 450,000 

Bradley R Dowe  
BSc (Computer Science)

Managing Director and CEO

Director since October 2002

Member of the Nominations 
Committee

Mr Dowe is the founder and 
Chief Executive Officer of 
Legend and has been working 
in the field of engineering 
and computing for over 25 
years.  His experience covers 
all facets of engineering, 
electronics, manufacturing 
processes, software system 
development and international 
business operations. Bradley 
is a member of the Legend 
Nomination Committee.

Directorships held in other 
listed entities:

•	 None

Previous directorships held in 
the last three years:

•	 None

	 Interest in shares: 
• 61,336,836 shares

	 Interest in options: 
• None

Ian L Fraser  
FCPA, FAICD

Independent Non-Executive 
Director

Director since January 2008

Chairman of the Audit and Risk 
Management Committee and 
Member of the Remuneration 
Committee and the 
Nominations Committee

Mr Fraser has extensive 
experience in corporate 
turnarounds, particularly in 
Australian manufacturing.  
Ian has held several senior 
management positions 
including Managing Director 
of Pioneer Sugar Mills Limited, 
Clyde Industries Limited, 
Australian Chemical Holdings 
Limited and TNT Australia Pty 
Ltd.  Ian also has substantial 
international experience having 
lived and worked in South East 
Asia and the United States. 

Directorships held in other 
listed entities:

•	 PMP Limited (appointed 
March 2003)

•	 Structural Systems Limited 
(appointed May 2004)

Previous directorships held in 
the last three years:

•	 Wattyl Limited (appointed 
June 2009, resigned 
September 2010)

•	 Forest Place Group Limited 
(appointed November 
2001, resigned August 
2011)

	 Interest in shares: 
• 965,000 shares

	 Interest in options: 
• None
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Company 
Secretary

Graham Seppelt CPA 

Mr Seppelt was appointed as 
company secretary in January 
2005.  Graham is a Certified 
Practicing Accountant (CPA) 
with 40 years’ experience and 
a wide exposure to a range of 
industries as a senior manager 
and contract accountant in 
corporate advisory roles.  He is 
also company secretary for ASX 
listed companies BSA Limited, 
Mesbon China Nylon Limited, 
UXA Resources Limited and 
Australian Zircon NL.

Meetings of 
Directors

During the financial year, 17 
meetings of directors (including 
committees of directors) were 
held. Attendances by each 
director during the year are 
detailed in the table below.

Principal 
Activities

The principal activities of the 
Consolidated Group during the 
financial year were:

•	 The distribution of cable 
accessories and tools 
servicing the electrical 
wholesale industry;

•	 The design and sale 
of integrated circuits 
(semiconductors) and 
hybrids for consumer 
electrical products, medical 
devices and industrial 
electronic components;

•	 The distribution of 
computer room 
accessories; and

•	 The design and sale of 
specialised connectors and 
cable assemblies to power 
utilities and infrastructure 
project contractors.

There were no significant 
changes in the nature of the 
Consolidated Group’s principal 
activities during the financial 
year.

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS

		A  udit	R emuneration	N omination 	  

	 Board	 Meetings 	 Committee Meetings 	 Committee Meetings

	 A	 B	A		   B	A		   B	A	  B

Bruce Higgins	 10	 10	 2	 2	 4	 4	 1	 1

Bradley Dowe	 10	 10	 *	 *	 *	 *	 1	 1

Ian Fraser	 10	 10	 2	 2	 4	 4	 1	 1

A	Number of meetings attended

B	Number of meetings held during the time the director held office or was a member of the committee during the year

*	 Not a member of the relevant committee
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Operating 
Results and 
Review of 
Operations for 
the Year

Operating Results

Net profit after tax (NPAT) for 
the Group was $9,436,000,  
an increase of 18% on the  
prior year (2011: $7,985,000).   
This result is the Group’s  
fourth consecutive year of 
NPAT growth.

Growth for the year is largely 
attributable to the acquired 
entities of MSS Fibre Systems 
Pty Ltd (MSF) and MSS Power 
Systems Pty Ltd (MSP), 
and the asset acquisition of 
Extreme Safety.  Growth in the 
pre-acquisition electrical, data 
and communications business 
was offset by the decline 
in memory modules and 
semiconductor operations.

Review of 
Operations

Memory modules and 
semiconductors

As a result of the continuing 
contraction in demand of the 
segment’s major customer, 
Earnings Before Interest 
Taxation, Depreciation and 
Amortisation (EBITDA) was 
down 47% to $3,166,000 
(2011: $5,921,000).

New products have been 
developed and released to 
market, with further products 
currently in the development 
and commercialisation faze.  
The release to market of these 
newly developed products 
did not occur until late in the 
year, hence the full benefit to 
earnings will not be seen until 
the coming financial year.

Electrical, data and 
communications

EBITDA for the segment grew 
by 75% to $14,067,000 (2011: 
$8,047,000).

Greater than 20% of the 
growth came from the 
pre-acquisition business 
through increased product 
offerings and the continued 
growth of our power utility and 
infrastructure customer base. 
The MSS acquisitions, which 
form part of this segment, 
performed at the upper end of 
their earnings based  
earn-out targets.

Net Profit After Tax
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Financial 
Position

As at 30 June 2012 net 
assets of the Group were 
$58,132,000, an increase of 
$5,183,000 (10%) on the  
prior year.

Additional bank debt of 
$9,046,000 was drawn 
down 1 July 2011 to fund 
the acquisitions of the MSS 
entities.  Net debt at year end 
was $11,017,000, a modest 
0.6 times EBITDA.

 

 

The Group executed a new 
Corporate Letter of Offer (CLO) 
with National Australia Bank 
Limited dated 29 June 2012.  
Bank bill facilities offered 
under the CLO extend to 30 
November 2014.

The Directors believe the 
Group is in a strong financial 
position to expand and grow 
current operations.

Significant 
Changes in State 
of Affairs

During the year, the following 
changes occurred within  
the Group:

Acquisitions

•	 On 1 July 2011 the Group 
acquired 100% of the 
issued capital of MSS 
Fibre Systems Pty Ltd 
and MSS Power and Fibre 
Systems Pty Ltd.  The cost 
of the acquisition was an 
initial cash payment on 
settlement of $5,750,000, 
and a final deferred cash 
payment no later than 
31 August 2012 of up to 
$2,750,000 determined 
as a multiple of Earnings 
Before Interest and 
Taxation (EBIT) for the year 
ended 30 June 2012.

	 The final deferred payment 
to be made 31 August 
2012 has been confirmed 
at $2,472,768.

•	 On 1 July 2011 the Group 
acquired 100% of the 
issued capital of MSS 
Power Systems Pty Ltd.  
The cost of the acquisition 
was an initial cash 
payment on settlement 
of $3,300,000, and two 
deferred cash payments 
no later than 31 August 
2012 and 31 August 2013 
of up to $1,100,000 each 
determined as a multiple  
of EBIT for the years ended 
30 June 2012 and  
30 June 2013.

	 The first deferred payment 
to be made 31 August 
2012 has been confirmed 
at $1,100,000.

•	 On 30 September 2011 the 
Group acquired selected 
business assets of Silglen 
Pty Ltd trading as Extreme 
Safety.  An initial payment 
of $1,000,000 was made 
on settlement with a final 
payment of $1,000,084 
made subsequent to year 
end. Net debt profile
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Issue of share capital

•	 On 22 August 2011, 
150,000 shares were 
issued on the exercise 
of options.  Each share 
has the same terms and 
conditions as the existing 
ordinary shares.

•	 On 19 October 2011, 
234,375 shares were 
granted as remuneration 
to Key Management 
Personnel of the company 
through the Employee 
Share Plan.  Each share 
has the same terms and 
conditions as the existing 
ordinary shares.

•	 On 21 March 2012,  
14,706 shares were 
granted as remuneration 
to Key Management 
Personnel of the company 
through the Employee 
Share Plan.  Each share 
has the same terms and 
conditions as the existing 
ordinary shares.

Dividends

A fully franked interim dividend 
of $2,174,000 (1 cent per 
share) was paid on 27 April 
2012 (2011: $1,736,000).

Subsequent to the end of the 
financial year, the Directors 
have declared a fully franked 
final dividend of $2,391,850 
(1.1 cents per share) to be 
paid 12 October 2011 (2011: 
$2,172,000)

Events Arising 
Since the End of 
the Reporting 
Period

Apart from the final dividend 
declared, there are no other 
matters or circumstances that 
have arisen since the end of 
the financial year that have 
significantly affected or may 
significantly affect either:

•	 The Group’s operations in 
future financial years;

•	 The results of those 
operations in future 
financial years; or

•	 The Group’s state of affairs 
in future financial years. 

 

Future 
Development, 
Prospective 
and Business 
Strategies

We will continue our focus 
on business initiatives to 
meet customer needs whilst 
continuing to manage debt 
and costs, improving inventory 
performance and quality of 
earnings.  We are actively 
seeking new opportunities 
within our existing resources.

Legend has performed well 
over the year.  The Directors 
are confident that the group is 
well placed for the future.

Environmental 
Issues

The Group was not subject 
to any particular or significant 
environmental regulations of 
the Commonwealth, individual 
States or Territories of Australia 
during the financial year.

Indemnifying 
Officers or 
Auditor

During the year, the Company 
paid a premium for a 
contract insuring all directors, 
secretaries, executive officers 
and officers of the Company 
and of each related body 
corporate of the Company. The 
insurance does not provide 
cover for the independent 
auditors of the Company or of 
a related body corporate of the 
Company.

In accordance with usual 
commercial practice, the 
insurance contract prohibits 
disclosure of details of the 
nature of the liabilities covered 
by the insurance, the limit of 
indemnity and the amount of 
the premium paid under the 
contract.
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Options

At the date of this report, the 
unissued ordinary shares of 
Legend Corporation Limited 
under option are detailed in the 
table below.

Option holders do not have 
any rights to participate in 
any issues of shares or other 
interests in the company or any 
other entity.

There have been no unissued 
shares or interests under 
option of any controlled entity 
within the Group during or 
since reporting date.

For details of options issued 
to directors and executives 
as remuneration, refer to the 
Remuneration Report.

During the year ended 30 June 
2012, 150,000 ordinary shares 
of Legend Corporation Limited 
were issued at $0.10 per share 
on the exercise of options 
granted under the Legend 
Corporation Limited Employee 
Option Plan.  No shares have 
been issued since that date.  
No amounts are unpaid on any 
of the shares.

Proceedings 
on Behalf of 
Company

No person has applied 
for leave of Court to bring 
proceedings on behalf of the 
company or intervene in any 
proceedings to which the 
company is a party for the 
purpose of taking responsibility 
on behalf of the company 
for all or any part of those 
proceedings.

The company was not a party 
to any such proceedings 
during the year.

Non-audit 
Services

The Board of Directors, in 
accordance with advice from 
the audit committee, is satisfied 
that the provision of non-audit 
services during the year is 
compatible with the general 
standard of independence 
for auditors imposed by the 
Corporations Act 2001. The 
directors are satisfied that the 
services disclosed below did 
not compromise the external 
auditor’s independence for the 
following reasons;

•	 all non-audit services are 
reviewed and approved 
by the audit committee 
prior to commencement 
to ensure they do not 
adversely affect the 
integrity and objectivity of 
the auditor; and

•	 the nature of the 
services provided do not 
compromise the general 
principles relating to 
auditor independence in 
accordance with APES 
110: Code of Ethics for 
Professional Accountants 
set by the Accounting 
Professional and Ethical 
Standards Board.

The following fees were paid 
or payable to Grant Thornton 
Australia Limited for non-audit 
services provided during the 
year ended 30 June 2012:	    

Amounts paid/payable 

to Grant Thornton 

Australia Limited for:

- Taxation services      $29,850

Auditor’s 
Independence 
Declaration

The lead auditor’s 
independence declaration for 
the year ended 30 June 2012 
as required under section 
307C of the Corporations Act 
2001 has been received and 

can be found on page 40, 
which forms part of this report.

ASIC Class 
Order 98/100 
Rounding of 
Amounts

The company is an entity 
to which ASIC Class 
Order 98/100 applies and, 
accordingly, amounts in the 
financial statements and 
directors’ report have been 
rounded to the nearest 
thousand dollars.

Grant Date	 Date of Expiry	Ex ercise Price	N umber under Option

30 Nov 2007	 30 Nov 2012	 $0.44	 150,000

30 Nov 2007	 30 Nov 2012	 $0.49	 150,000

30 Nov 2007	 30 Nov 2012	 $0.54	 150,000

			   450,000

UNISSUED ORDINARY SHARES UNDER OPTIONS
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REMUNERATION 
REPORT (audited)

The Directors of Legend 
Corporation Limited 
(‘the Group’) present the 
Remuneration Report prepared 
in accordance with the 
Corporations Act 2001 and 
the Corporations Regulations 
2001.

The remuneration report is set 
out under the following main 
headings:

a.	 Principles used to 
determine the nature and 
amount of remuneration

b.	 Details of remuneration

c.	 Service agreements

d.	 Share-based remuneration

e.	 Other information.

a.	 Principles used to 
determine the nature 
and amount of 
remuneration

The principles of the Group’s 
executive strategy and 
supporting incentive programs 
and frameworks are:

•	 To align rewards to 
business outcomes 
that deliver value to 
shareholders;

•	 To drive a high 

performance culture 
by setting challenging 
objectives and rewarding 
high performing individuals; 
and

•	 To ensure remuneration is 
competitive in the relevant 
employment market place 
to support the attraction, 
motivation and retention of 
executive talent.

Legend Corporation 
Limited has structured a 
remuneration framework that 
is market competitive and 
complementary to the reward 
strategy of the Group.

The Board has established 
a Remuneration Committee 
which operates in accordance 
with its charter as approved by 
the Board and is responsible 
for determining and reviewing 
compensation arrangements 
for the directors and the 
executive team.

The Committee may engage 
independent external 
consultants and advisors 
to provide any necessary 
information to assist in the 
discharge of its responsibilities.

The remuneration structure 
that has been adopted by the 
Group consists of the following 
components:

•	 Fixed remuneration being 

annual salary; 

•	 Short term incentives, 
being employee share 
schemes and bonuses; 
and

•	 Long term incentives, 
being performance based, 
payable in arrears with 
cash and shares.

The Remuneration Committee 
assesses the appropriateness 
of the nature and amount of 
remuneration on a periodic 
basis by reference to recent 
employment market conditions 
with the overall objective of 
ensuring maximum stakeholder 
benefit from the retention 
of a high quality Board and 
executive team.

The payment of bonuses, 
shares, share options and 
other incentive payments 
are reviewed by the 
Remuneration Committee 
annually as part of the review 
of executive remuneration 
and a recommendation is put 
to the Board for approval. All 
bonuses, shares, options and 
incentives must be linked to 
pre-determined performance 
criteria.

The Key Performance 
Indicators (KPI’s) for 
the Executive Team are 
summarised as follows:

•	 Financial – operating profit 
before income tax; and

•	 Non-financial – strategic 
goals set by each individual 
business unit based on job 
descriptions.

Legend Corporation Limited 
performance measures involve 
the use of annual performance 
objectives, metrics, 
performance appraisals and 
continuing emphasis on living 
the company values.

Short term incentive 
(STI)

Individual performance 
measures are set annually after 
consultation with the directors 
and executives and are 
specifically tailored to the areas 
where each executive has a 
level of control. The measures 
target areas the Board believes 
hold the greatest potential for 
expansion and profit and cover 
financial and non-financial 
measures.

The STI program incorporates 
both cash and share-based 
components for the executive 
team and other employees.

The Board may, at its 
discretion, award bonuses for 
exceptional performance in 
relation to each person’s  
pre-agreed KPIs.
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Group Level Incentive 
Plan (GLIP)

The GLIP provides a collective 
bonus for distribution to 
nominated group level 
executives leveraged to a 
minimum growth requirement 
of 10% year-on-year in Net 
Profit Before Tax (NPBT). 

Accumulation of the bonus 
occurs after the achievement 
of the minimum growth 
requirement, up to a maximum 
accumulation of 5% of NPBT.

Merger and acquisition 
activities attract a further hurdle 
of 10% on funds invested 
additional to the minimum 
growth requirement.

The minimum NPBT growth 
requirement including merger 
and acquisition activities for 
the 2012 financial year was 
18.5%.  This requirement was 
met and a provision for GLIP 
of $414,509 included in the 
financial statements as at 30 
June 2012.  The distribution 
of the provision approved by 
the Remuneration Committee 
subsequent to year end is set 
out in the table below.

Shares have been issued at 
the market price on the date 
of approval of $0.31 per share. 
These shares have been 
issued in accordance with 

the Group’s Limited Recourse 
Loan Agreement.  Under 
the Agreement the shares 
have a three year vesting 
period.  Nominated group 
level executives are entitled 
to three times the value of the 
share component of their GLIP 
apportionment with a loan 
from the company of equal 
value.  The term of the loan 
is five years after which time 
the outstanding balance is 
repayable in full. Non-executive 
Directors are not entitled to 
participate in the GLIP.

Use of remuneration 
consultants

The Board and Remuneration 
Committee engaged 
remuneration consultants to 
provide remuneration advice 
and information to the Board.
On 12 August 2011, KPMG 
was appointed as independent 
remuneration advisor to the 
Board. 

On 12 August 2011, the 
Remuneration Committee, 
engaged KPMG independent 
of management to assist the 
Board with the implementation 
of the GLIP. The engagement 
of KPMG by the Chairman 
of the Remuneration 
Committee was based on 
an agreed set of protocols 

that would be followed by 
KPMG, members of the 
Remuneration Committee 
and members of the key 
management personnel for 
the way in which remuneration 
recommendations would be 
developed by KPMG and 
provided to the Board. 

These arrangements were 
implemented to ensure 
that KPMG would be 
able to carry out its work, 
including information capture 
and the formation of its 
recommendations, free from 
undue influence by members 
of the key management 
personnel about whom the 
recommendations may relate.

The Board undertook its own 
inquiries and review of the 
processes and procedures 
followed by KPMG and is 
satisfied that their remuneration 
recommendations were made 
free from such undue influence. 

The Board and Remuneration 
Committee confirm that 
KPMG made remuneration 
recommendations within 
the meaning of the 
Corporations Act in respect 
of the structure of the 
GLIP.  These remuneration 
recommendations were made 
in respect of elements of 
remuneration and were not 

in respect of the quantum of 
the GLIP to be provided.  The 
total consideration paid by 
the company to KPMG for the 
provision of the remuneration 
recommendations in the 2012 
financial year was $20,500. 

In the 2012 financial year 
KPMG also provided tax 
services to the company.  The 
total consideration paid by the 
company to KPMG for these 
other services was $71,359.

Voting and comments 
made at the company’s 
2011 Annual General 
Meeting

Legend received more than 
99% of “yes” votes on its 
remuneration report for the 
2011 financial year.  The 
company did not receive any 
specific feedback at the AGM 
on its remuneration report.

	 GLIP %	 GLIP Total	c ash	sh ares	 value of	N umber of 

					sh     ares	 SHARES  Issued

		  $	 $	 $	 $		  #

Bradley Dowe	 48.6%	 201,400	 101,400	 100,000	 300,000	 967,742

Hamish McEwin	 31.6%	 130,933	 65,933	 65,000	 195,000	 629,032

David Humphreys	 15.0%	 62,176	 31,176	 31,000	 93,000	 300,000

Unallocated	 4.8%	 20,000	 20,000	 -	 -		  -

Total		  414,509	 218,509	 196,000	 588,000	 1,896,774
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	 2012	 2011	 2010	 2009	 2008

Net profit before tax	 $13.6m	 $11.5m	 $9.7m	 $6.3m	 ($42.5m)

Net profit after tax	 $9.4m	 $8.0m	 $6.6m	 $4.6m	 ($40.7m)

EPS (cents)	 4.3	 3.7	 3.1	 2.1	 (28.0)

Dividends paid (cents)	 2.0	 1.8	 -	 -	 1.5

Share price.at year-end (cents)	 32	 31	 16	 8	 10

b. Details of remuneration

Details of the nature and amount of each element of the remuneration of each key management personnel (‘KMP’) of Legend 
Corporation Limited are shown in the table below.  Remuneration has been determined using a cash basis of accounting and 
therefore excludes accrued leave and GLIP amounts.

Directors and Other Key Management Personnel Remuneration

	 Short-term Benefits	 Post- 	L ong-	 termination	 Equity-settled 
		  employment	  term	p ayments	sh are-based  
		b  enefits	b enefits		p  ayments

											           % of  
	  										          remuneration 
	 Salary, fees	 Profit									         that is 
	 and leave	 share and	N on-	 Pensions and		  Incentive	T ermination 	 Shares /	O ptions /		  performance 
	  	 bonuses (3)	 monetary	 superannuation	   	 plans  	 payments	U nits (3)	R ights (1)	T otal	 based

 	  $	 $	 $	 $	  	 $	 $	 $	 $	 $	 %

Executive Director	  	  	  			    	  			    	  
Mr Bradley Dowe - 	 2012	 330,000	 75,000	 14,220	 36,450	 -	 -	 75,000	 -	 530,670	 28.3
Managing Director / 	 2011	 300,000	 34,871	 18,023	 30,138	 -	 -	 15,129	 -	 398,161	 12.6 
Chief Executive Officer		

Non-Executive Directors											            
Mr Bruce Higgins - 	 2012	 125,280	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 125,280	 -
Chairman / Independent 	 2011	 119,016	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 119,016	 - 
Non-executive Director		

Mr Ian Fraser – 	 2012	 64,998	 -	 -	 5,850	 -	 -	 -	 -	 70,848	 - 
Independent 	 2011	 61,750	 -	 -	 5,557	 -	 -	 -	 -	 67,307	 - 
Non-executive Director		

Other Key Management Personnel											           
Mr Hamish McEwin - 	 2012	 297,925	 100,000	 -	 25,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 422,925	 23.6
Chief Financial Officer	 2011	 275,230	 25,805	 -	 27,093	 -	 -	 11,195	 -	 339,323	 10.9

Mr David Humphreys - 	 2012	 193,250	 75,458	 10,603	 25,126	 -	 -	 -	 -	 304,437	 24.8 
Group Marketing Manager	 2011	 164,750	 22,704	 20,025	 16,871	 -	 -	 34,796	 -	 259,146	 22.2

Mr Robert Watters - 	 2012	 22,594	 -	 -	 2,033	 -	 114,654	 -	 -	 139,281	 - 
General Manager 	 2011	 185,508	 5,000	 11,015	 18,587	 -	 -	 -	 -	 220,110	 2.3 
National Sales (resigned  
12 August 2011)		

Mrs Susan Jones - 	 2012	 160,234	 22,000	 10,380	 18,569	 -	 -	 5,000	 -	 216,183	 12.5 
Group Supply Manager	 2011	 155,040	 20,000	 17,289	 17,504	 -	 -	 -	 -	 209,833	 9.5

Mr Andrew Hartley - 	 2012	 164,362	 18,000	 14,313	 16,413	 -	 -	 -	 -	 213,088	 8.4 
CABAC National 	 2011	                -   	               -   	               -   	                         -   	               -   	                   -   	               -   	                -   	               -   	 - 
Sales Manager (2)	

Total Key Management 	 2012	 1,358,643	 290,458	 49,516	 129,441	 -	 114,654	 80,000	 -	 2,022,712	  - 
Personnel	 2011	 1,261,294	 108,380	 66,352	 115,750	 -	 -	 61,120	 -	 1,612,896	  -	

Other Executives	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	  	   
Mr Graham Seppelt - 	 2012	 39,126	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 39,126	  - 
Group Company Secretary	 2011	 38,520	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 38,520	 - 

(1) 	 No options granted during the current financial year.

(2) 	 Not KMP last financial year. 

3) 	 Bonus payments and shares issued during 2012 do not include the distribution of the GLIP to group level executives.  Included in the financial statements as at 30 June 2012 is a 
provision for the GLIP of $414,509

 

Consequences of performance 
on shareholder wealth

In considering the Group’s performance 
and benefits for shareholder wealth, the 
Board has regard to the following indices 
in respect of the current financial year and 
the previous four financial years:
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c.	 Service agreements

Remuneration and other terms of employment for the Executive Directors and other KMP are formalised in a service agreement. The major 
provisions of the agreements relating to remuneration are set out below:

d.	 Share based remuneration

Group level executives are encouraged to take a minimum 50% of any bonus payment in Company shares.  Shares issued during the 
current financial year to group executives we are follows:

Options (granted over unissued shares)

All options refer to options over ordinary shares of the Company, which are exercisable on a one-for-one basis.  Options carry no dividend 
or voting rights.

Details of options over ordinary shares in the Company that were granted as remuneration to each key management personnel are set out 
below.

Name	 Based salary	T erm of agreement	N otice period	

Mr Bradley Dowe	 $330,000	 Unspecified	 6 months

Mr Hamish McEwin	 $290,000	 Unspecified	 6 months

Mr David Humphreys	 $219,749	 Unspecified	 6 months

Mrs Susan Jones	 $160,234	 Unspecified	 3 months

Mr Andrew Hartley	 $191,772	 Unspecified	 1 month

Name	N umber granted	 Grant date	 Issue date	V alue per share 		
				    at grant date

Bradley Dowe	 234,375	 19.09.2011	 01.11.2011	 $0.32

Susan Jones	 14,706	 21.03.2012	 18.04.2012	 $0.34

	 Grant details	 For the financial year ended 30 June 2012		O  verall

	 Date	N o.	V alue  	E xercised  	E xercised 	L apsed 	L apsed 	V ested 	V ested 	U nvested 	L apsed  
			   $	N o.	 $	N o.	 $	N o.	 %	 %	 %

Group Key  
Management  
Personnel

Mr Bruce Higgins	 24.06.2008	 450,000	 23,510	 150,000	 15,000	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -	 -

	 30.11.2007	 450,000	 67,904	 -	 -	 -	 -	 450,000	 100	 -	 -

				    150,000	 15,000	 -	 -	 450,000			 
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e.	O ther

Changes in Directors and Executives Subsequent to Year-End

There have been no changes to Directors or Executives subsequent to year-end.

End of audited Remuneration Report.

This Report of the Directors, incorporating the Remuneration Report, is signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

Bruce E Higgins 
Chairman of Directors 
Legend Corporation Limited 
15 August 2012

Description of Options Issued as Remuneration

Grant date	 Issuer	 Entitlement	 Dates	Ex ercise	V alue $	Am ount paid /  	
		  on exercise	 exercisable	p rice  	p er option	p ayable by  
					     at grant date	 recipient 
				    $	 $	 $

24.06.2008	 Legend Corporation 	 1:1 Ordinary Shares	 24.05.2009 to	 0.10	 0.05	 0.00 
	 Limited (ASX: LGD)	 in Legend Corporation	 24.06.2013 
		  Limited 	  (expiry)

24.06.2008	 Legend Corporation 	 1:1 Ordinary Shares	 24.05.2010 to	 0.10	 0.05	 0.00 
	 Limited	 in Legend Corporation 	 24.06.2013 
		  Limited	 (expiry)	

24.06.2008	 Legend Corporation 	 1:1 Ordinary Shares	 24.05.2011 to	 0.10	 0.05	 0.00 
	 Limited	 in Legend Corporation 	 24.06.2013 
		  Limited	  (expiry)	

30.11.2007	 Legend Corporation 	 1:1 Ordinary Shares	 30.11.2008 to	 0.44	 0.17	 0.00 
	 Limited	 in Legend Corporation 	 30.11.2012	  
		  Limited	 (expiry)	

30.11.2007	 Legend Corporation 	 1:1 Ordinary Shares	 30.11.2009 to	 0.49	 0.15	 0.00 
	 Limited	 in Legend Corporation 	 30.11.2012 
		  Limited	  (expiry)	

30.11.2007	 Legend Corporation	 1:1 Ordinary Shares 	 30.11.2010 to	 0.54	 0.14	 0.00		
	 Limited	 in Legend Corporation	 30.11.2012 
		  Limited	 (expiry)

Option values at grant date were determined using the Black-Scholes method.  The options were provided at no cost to the recipient.  All 
options expire on the earlier of their expiry date or termination of the individual’s employment. 
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














































 


 

















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	 Notes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

Sales revenue	 2	  103,215 	  87,076 

Finance revenue	 2	  224 	  262 

Total revenue		   103,439 	  87,338 

					   

Other income	 2	  277 	  -   	

 

Changes in inventories		   973 	  530 

Raw materials and consumables used		   (56,872)	  (46,454)

Employee benefits expense		   (20,315)	  (16,872)

Depreciation and amortisation expense		   (2,424)	  (1,694)

Finance costs		   (1,345)	  (1,055)

Occupancy costs		   (3,226)	  (2,988)

Other expenses		   (6,879)	  (7,309)

						    

Profit before income tax	 3	  13,628 	  11,496 

Income tax expense	 4	  (4,192)	  (3,511)

						    

Profit for the year		   9,436 	  7,985 

 

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax		   -   	  -   

 

Total comprehensive income for the year		   9,436 	  7,985 

 

Profit attributable to:					   

	 Members of the parent entity		   9,436 	  7,985 

	 Non-controlling interest		   -   	  -   

			    9,436 	  7,985 

 

Total comprehensive income attributable to:					   

	 Members of the parent entity		   9,436 	  7,985 

	 Non-controlling interest		   -   	  -   

			    9,436 	  7,985 

				  
				  
	 Cents	 Cents

Basic earnings per share	 8	  4.3	  3.7 

Diluted earnings per share	 8	  4.3	  3.7 
						    
The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements						    

		  					   

	

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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	N otes	 Consolidated Group
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000	

Current assets			 

Cash and cash equivalents	 9	  6,758 	  9,560 

Trade and other receivables	 10	  18,677 	  12,762 

Inventories	 11	  18,743  	 15,356 

Other current assets	 12	  568 	  803 
 

Total current assets		   44,746 	  38,481 	

 

Non-current assets			 

Investments accounted for using the equity method	 13	  -   	  -   

Property, plant and equipment	 14	  9,172 	  8,520 

Deferred tax assets	 19	  1,787 	  1,490 

Goodwill	 15	  40,124	  30,379 

Other intangible assets	 15	  3,783 	  -    
 

Total non-current assets		   54,866  	  40,389 
 

Total assets		     99,612	  78,870 

 

Current liabilities			 

Trade and other payables	 17	  18,015 	  9,695 

Financial liabilities	 18	  135 	  2 

Borrowings	 19	  2,400 	  2,000 

Current tax liabilities	 20	   1,318	  2,887 

Short-term provisions	 21	  2,734 	  1,929  
 

Total current liabilities		    24,602	  16,513 

 

Non-current liabilities			 

Trade and other payables	 17	  47 	  -   

Borrowings	 19	  15,375 	  8,875 

Deferred tax liability		  1,135	 -

Long-term provisions	 21	  321 	  533 
 

Total non-current liabilities		    16,878 	  9,408  
 

Total liabilities		     41,480  	  25,921  
 

Net assets		     58,132 	  52,949  

 

Equity	 			 

Issued capital	 22	  74,230 	  74,135 

Reserves	 23	  115 	  115 

Accumulated losses		   (16,213)	  (21,301)

 

Total equity		     58,132 	  52,949  

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements			 

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION	
AS AT 30 JUNE 2012							     
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		  Issued	Op tion	Acc umulated	  
	N otes	 Capital	R eserve	L osses	T otal 
Consolidated Group		  $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

Balance at 1 July 2010		   74,044 	  110 	  (25,381)	  48,773  

 

Profit attributable to members of the parent entity		  -  	 -   	  7,985 	  7,985 

Total comprehensive income for the period		   -   	  -   	  7,985 	  7,985  

 

Shares issued during the year		  91 	 -	 -	  91 

Dividends	 7	 -	 -	  (3,905)	  (3,905)

Option expense		   - 	 5 	  -   	  5 

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners		  91 	  5 	  (3,905)	  96  

 

Balance at 30 June 2011		  74,135 	  115 	  (21,301)	  52,949  

							        

Profit attributable to members of the parent entity		  -   	 -   	  9,436 	  9,436   

Total comprehensive income for the period		   -   	  -   	 9,436  	  9,436

 

Shares issued during the year		  95 	  -   	  -   	  95 

Dividends	 7	 -	 -	  (4,348)	  (4,348)

Option expense		   -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Transactions with owners in their capacity as owners		   95 	  -   	  (4,348)	  (4,253) 

 

Balance at 30 June 2012		    74,230 	  115 	  (16,213)	  58,132 

 

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements						    

			 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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	N otes	 Consolidated Group
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000	

Cash flows from operating activities				  

Receipts from customers		    101,089 	  87,326 

Payments to suppliers and employees		    (87,377)	  (70,281)

Interest received		   224 	  262 

Finance costs		   (1,345)	  (1,055)

Income tax paid		   (6,232)	  (1,608)

 

Net cash provided by operating activities	 27	    6,359  	  14,644  

					   

Cash flows from investing activities			   	

Proceeds from the sale of plant and equipment		    11  	  29 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment		    (2,026)	  (1,975)

Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of cash		   (9,225)	  (2,060) 

 

Net cash USED IN investing activities		    (11,240)	 (4,006)	  

					   

Cash flows from financing activities				  

Proceeds from issue of shares		   15 	  30 

Dividends paid		   (4,346)	  (3,905)

Repayment of borrowings		   (2,626)	  (4,125)

Proceeds from bank loans		   9,046 	 - 

 

Net cash PROVIDED BY (used in) financing activities		   2,089 	  (8,000)

					   

Net increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held		   (2,791)	  2,638 

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of financial year		   9,560 	  6,922 

Exchange differences on cash and cash equivalents		   (10)	  -    

 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of financial year	 9	  6,758 	  9,560 

					      

 

 

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements			 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS			
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     



46

This financial report covers Legend Corporation Limited (‘Parent Entity’) and its controlled entities as a consolidated entity (‘Consolidated Group’ or ‘Group’).  
Legend Corporation Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia.		

NOTE 1:  STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES				  

General information and statement of compliance								      

The consolidated general purpose financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Corporations Act 
2001, Australian Accounting Standards and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB). Compliance 
with Australian Accounting Standards results in full compliance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International 
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), The group is a for profit entity for the purpose of preparing the financial statements.

Legend Corporation Limited is the Group’s ultimate parent entity. Legend Corporation Limited is a public company incorporated and domiciled in Australia. 
The address of its registered office is 1 Butler Drive, Hendon, South Australia, 5014.

Changes in accounting policies
Adoption of AASBs and improvements to AASBs 2011 – AASB 1054 and AASB 2011-11
The AASB has issued AASB 1054 Australian Additional Disclosures and 2011-1 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Trans-
Tasman Convergence Project, and made several minor amendments to a number of AASBs. These standards eliminate a large portion of the differences 
between the Australian and New Zealand accounting standards and IFRS and retain only additional disclosures considered necessary. These changes also 
simplify some current disclosures for Australian entities and remove others.             

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not 
been adopted early by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been 
published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Group. Management anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will 
be adopted in the Group’s accounting policies for the first period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, 
amendments and interpretations that are expected to be relevant to the Group’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and 
interpretations have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments (December 2010) 
AASB 9 amends the classification and measurement of financial assets. The effect on the entity will be that more assets may be held at fair value and 
the need for impairment testing has been limited to financial assets held at amortised cost only. Minimal changes have been made in relation to the 
classification and measurement of financial liabilities, except that the effects of ‘own credit risk’ are recognised in other comprehensive income. The 
standard is applicable from 31 December 2012 and management are yet to consider the impact to the Group.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
AASB 10 establishes a revised control model that applies to all entities. It replaces the consolidation requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements and AASB Interpretation 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities.  It introduces a revised definition of control which 
will apply to all investees to determine the scope of consolidation. Traditional control assessments based on majority ownership of voting rights will rarely 
be affected. However, ‘borderline’ consolidation decisions will need to be reviewed and some will need to be changed taking into consideration potential 
voting rights and substantive rights. Applicable from 31 December 2013, management have determined there will be a minimal impact on the Groups 
Financial statements.

AASB 11 Joint Arrangements  
Entities with existing joint arrangements or that plan to enter into new joint arrangements will be affected by the new standard. These entities will need 
to assess their arrangements to determine whether they have interests in a joint operation or a joint venture upon adoption of the new standard or upon 
entering into the arrangement. Entities that have been accounting for their interest in a joint venture using proportionate consolidation will no longer be 
allowed to use this method; instead they will account for the joint venture using the equity method. In addition, there may be some entities that previously 
equity-accounted for investments that may need to account for their share of assets and liabilities now that there is less focus on the structure of the 
arrangement. Effective from 31 December 2013, management have determined the standard is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group.

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
AASB 12 combines the disclosure requirements for subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and structured entities within a comprehensive disclosure 
standard. It aims to provide more transparency on ‘borderline’ consolidation decisions and enhance disclosures about unconsolidated structured entities 
in which an investor or sponsor has involvement, management have determined the standard is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement  
AASB 13 has been issued to: 

•	 establish a single source of guidance for all fair value measurements; 

•	 clarify the definition of fair value and related guidance; and 

•	 enhance disclosures about fair value measurements (new disclosures increase transparency about fair value measurements, including the valuation 
techniques and inputs used to measure fair value) 
Applicable from 31 December 2013 the Groups management are yet to assess the impact of this new standard.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements  
AASB 127 (August 2011) will now solely address separate financial statements, the requirements for which are substantially unchanged from the previous 
version of the Standard. Applicable from 31 December 2013 the Groups management are yet to assess the impact of this new standard.

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures  
The mechanics of equity accounting set out in the revised version of AASB 128 remain the same as in the previous version. Applicable from 31 
December 2013 the Groups management are yet to assess the impact of this new standard.

AASB 2011-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income s (AASB 101 
Amendments) 
The AASB 101 Amendments require an entity to group items presented in other comprehensive income into those that, in accordance with other 
Australian Accounting Standards: (a) will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss and (b) will be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when 
specific conditions are met. It is applicable for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2012. The Group’s management expects this will change the 
current presentation of items in other comprehensive income; however, it will not affect the measurement or recognition of such items.

Amendments to AASB 119 Employee Benefits (AASB 119 Amendments) 
The AASB 119 Amendments include a number of targeted improvements throughout the Standard. The main changes relate to defined benefit plans. 
They:

•	 eliminate the ‘corridor method’, requiring entities to recognise all gains and losses arising in the reporting period in other comprehensive income

•	 streamline the presentation of changes in plan assets and liabilities

•	 enhance the disclosure requirements, including information about the characteristics of defined benefit plans and the risks that entities are exposed to 
through participation in them. 

The amended version of AASB 119 is effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2013. The Group’s management have yet to assess the 
impact of this revised standard on the Group’s consolidated financial statements

AASB 2010-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Deferred Tax: Recovery of Underlying Assets (AASB 112) 
The amendments brought in by this Standard introduce a more practical approach for measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets when 
investment property is measured using the fair value model under AASB 140 Investment Property. Under the current AASB 112, the measurement of 
deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets depends on whether an entity expects to recover an asset by using it or by selling it. The amendments 
introduce a presumption that an investment property is recovered entirely through sale. This presumption is rebutted if the investment property is held 
within a business model whose objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the investment property over time, 
rather than through sale. This standard is effective on annual reporting periods ending on or after 31 December 2012. The standard is unlikely to have a 
significant impact on the Group.

AASB 2011-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards  
This Standard gives effect to many consequential changes arising from the issuance of the new Standards. For example, references to AASB 127 
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements are amended to AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements or AASB 127 Separate Financial 
Statements, and references to AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures are deleted as that Standard has been superseded by AASB 11 and AASB 128 
(August 2011). 

AASB 2012-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  
AASB 2012-2 principally amends AASB 7 to require disclosure of information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the 
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised financial assets and recognised 
financial liabilities, on the entity’s financial position.  Effective 31 December 2013 this is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group. 

AASB 2012-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities  
AASB 2012-3 adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria of AASB 132, 
including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement. Effective from 31 December 2014 this is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group.

AASB 2012-5 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual Improvements 2009–2011 Cycle  
AASB 2012-5 makes amendments resulting from the 2009-2011 Annual Improvements Cycle. The Standard addresses a range of improvements, 
including the following: 

-	 repeat application of AASB 1 is permitted (AASB 1); and 

-	 clarification of the comparative information requirements when an entity provides a third balance sheet (AASB 101 Presentation of Financial 
Statements). 

Effective from 31 December 2014 this is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group.

Mandatory Effective Date of IFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures 
The amendments provide relief from the requirement to restate comparative financial statements for the effect of applying IFRS 9. This relief was originally 
only available to companies that chose to apply IFRS 9 prior to 2012. Additional transition disclosures will now be required to help understand the 
initial application of the Standard. Effective 31 December 2015, the effect on the Group has not been assessed. 
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     

NOTE 1:  STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Summary of accounting policies										        

a	O verall considerations										       

The significant accounting policies that have been used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are summarized below.			 
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using the measurement bases specified by Australian Accounting Standards for each type 
of asset, liability, income and expense. The measurement bases are more fully described in the accounting policies below.			 
					   

b.	 Basis of consolidation										       

The Group financial statements consolidate those of the parent company and all of its subsidiary undertakings drawn up to 30 June 2012.  Subsidiaries 
are all entities over which the Group has the power to control the financial and operating policies. The Group obtains and exercises control through 
more than half of the voting rights. All subsidiaries have a reporting date of 30 June.		

All transactions and balances between Group companies are eliminated on consolidation including unrealised gains and losses on transactions 
between Group companies. Where unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for 
impairment from a group perspective. Amounts reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where necessary to ensure 
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by the Group. 		

Profit or loss and other comprehensive income of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are recognised from the effective date of 
acquisition, or up to the effective date of disposal, as applicable.			 

Non- controlling interests, presented as part of equity, represent the portion of a subsidiary’s profit or loss and net assets that is not held by the Group. 
The Group attributes total comprehensive income or loss of subsidiaries between the owners of the parent and the non controlling interests based on 
the respective ownership interests. During the year all subsidiaries are wholly owned and therefore there are no non controlling interests. 			 

Business Combinations			 

The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets 
transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent 
consideration arrangement. Acquisition costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have been previously 
recognised in the acquirer’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally measured at their 
acquisition-date fair values.

Goodwill is stated after separate recognition of identifiable intangible assets. It is calculated as the excess of the sum of a) fair value of consideration 
transferred, b) the recognised amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and c) acquisition-date fair value of any existing equity interest in 
the acquiree, over the acquisition-date fair values of identifiable net assets. If the fair values of identifiable net assets exceed the sum calculated above, 
the excess  amount (i.e. gain on a bargain purchase) is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

c.	 Income Tax										        

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax not recognised in other comprehensive income or directly  
in equity.					   
Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those obligations to, or claims from, the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) and other fiscal authorities 
relating to the current or prior reporting periods, that are unpaid at the reporting date. Current tax is payable on taxable profit, which differs from profit or 
loss in the financial statements.

Calculation of current tax is based on tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period

Deferred income taxes are calculated using the liability method on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and 
their tax bases. However, deferred tax is not provided on the initial recognition of goodwill, or on the initial recognition of an asset or liability unless the 
related transaction is a business combination or affects tax or accounting profit. Deferred tax on temporary differences associated with investments in 
subsidiaries and joint ventures is not provided if reversal of these temporary differences can be controlled by the Group and it is probable that reversal 
will not occur in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated, without discounting, at tax rates that are expected to apply to their respective period of realisation, 
provided they are enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. Deferred tax liabilities are always provided for in full.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that they will be able to be utilised against future taxable income.  Deferred tax assets 
and liabilities are offset only when the Group has a right and  intention to set off current tax assets and liabilities from the same taxation authority.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a component of tax income or expense in profit or loss, except where they relate to items 
that are recognised in other comprehensive income (such as the revaluation of land) or directly in equity, in which case the related deferred tax is also 
recognised in other comprehensive income or equity, respectively.
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Taxation of financial arrangements										       

Legislation is in place which changes the tax treatment of financial arrangements including the tax treatment of hedging transactions. The Group 
has assessed the potential impact of these changes on the Group’s tax position and these are not considered to be significant. No impact has been 
recognised and no adjustments have been made to the deferred tax and income tax balances at 30 June 2012 (2011: $Nil).

d.	 Inventories										        

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes all expenses directly attributable to the manufacturing process as well 
as suitable portions of related production overheads, based on normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned on the basis of weighted average costs. 
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less any applicable selling expenses.			 
				  

e.	 Property, Plant and Equipment										        

Plant and equipment			 

Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.				  
The cost of fixed assets constructed within the Consolidated Group includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing costs and an appropriate 
proportion of fixed and variable overheads.			 

Depreciation			 

Depreciation is recognised on a straight-line basis to write down the cost or valuation less estimated residual value of property, plant and equipment

The depreciation rates used for each class of depreciable assets are:					   
					   

Class of Fixed Asset				    Depreciation Rate			 

Leasehold improvements	 2.5 - 30%		

Motor Vehicles	 18 - 25%			 

Plant and Equipment	 1 - 40%	

Material residual value estimates and estimates of useful life are updated as required, but at least annually.

Gains or losses arising on the disposal of property, plant and equipment are determined as the difference between the disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the assets and are recognised in profit or loss within ‘other income’ or ‘other expenses’. 

f.	L eased Assets										        

The economic ownership of a leased asset is transferred to the lessee if the lessee bears substantially all the risks and rewards related to the ownership 
of the leased asset. The related asset is then recognised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower, the present value of 
the lease payments plus incidental payments, if any. A corresponding amount is recognised as a finance leasing liability, irrespective of whether some of 
these lease payments are payable up-front at the  date of inception of the lease. Leases of land and buildings are classified separately and are split into 
a land and a building element, in accordance with the relative fair values of the leasehold interests at the date the asset is recognised initially.

Depreciation methods and useful lives for assets held under finance lease agreements correspond to those applied to comparable assets which are 
legally owned by the Group. The corresponding finance leasing liability is reduced by lease payments less finance charges, which are expensed as part 
of finance costs. 					   
The interest element of leasing payments represents a constant proportion of the capital balance outstanding and is charged to profit or loss over the 
period of the lease. 					   
All other leases are treated as operating leases. Payments on operating lease agreements are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over 
the lease term. Associated costs, such as maintenance and insurance, are expensed as incurred.

g.	 Financial Instruments										        

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or when the financial asset and all 
substantial risks and rewards are transferred.

A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured initially at fair value adjusted by transactions costs, except for financial assets and financial liabilities 
carried at fair value through profit or loss, which are measured initially at fair value. Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured subsequently as 
described below.
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NOTE 1:  STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets					   
For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets other than those designated and effective as hedging instruments are classified into the 
following categories upon initial recognition:

- loans and receivables			 

The category determines subsequent measurement and whether any resulting income and expense is recognised in profit or loss or in other 
comprehensive income.			 

All financial assets except for those at fair value through profit or loss are subject to review for impairment at least at each reporting date. Financial 
assets are impaired when there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. Different criteria to determine 
impairment are applied for each category of financial assets, which are described below.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within ‘finance costs’, ‘finance income’ or ‘other 
financial items’, except for impairment of trade receivables which is presented within ‘other expenses’.

Loans and Receivables			 

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial 
recognition these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment. Discounting is omitted where 
the effect of discounting is immaterial. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents, trade and most other receivables fall into this category of financial 
instruments.

Individually significant receivables are considered for impairment when they are past due or when other objective evidence is received that a specific 
counterparty will default. Receivables that are not considered to be individually impaired are reviewed for impairment in groups, which are determined 
by reference to the industry and region of a counterparty and other shared credit risk characteristics. The impairment loss estimate is then based on 
recent historical counterparty default rates for each identified group.			 

Financial Liabilities			 

The Group’s financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables and derivative financial instruments.

Financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method, except for financial liabilities held for trading or 
designated at fair value through profit or loss, that are carried subsequently at fair value with gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All derivative financial instruments that are not designated and effective as hedging instruments are accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or loss are included within ‘finance costs’ or 
‘finance income’.

h.	 Impairment testing of goodwill, other intangible assets and property, plant and equipment				  
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent cash inflows (cash-
generating units). As a result, some assets are tested individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit level. Goodwill is allocated 
to those cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from synergies of the related business combination and represent the lowest level within the 
Group at which management monitors goodwill. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairment at least annually. 
All other individual assets or cash-generating units are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying 
amount may not be recoverable. 										        

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount, 
which is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. To determine the value-in-use, management estimates expected future cash flows 
from each cash-generating unit and determines a suitable interest rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The data used 
for impairment testing procedures are directly linked to the Group’s latest approved budget, adjusted as necessary to exclude the effects of future 
reorganisations and asset enhancements. Discount factors are determined individually for each cash-generating unit and reflect their respective risk 
profiles as assessed by management.			 

Impairment losses for cash-generating units reduce first the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to that cash-generating unit. Any remaining 
impairment loss is charged pro rata to the other assets in the cash-generating unit. With the exception of goodwill, all assets are subsequently 
reassessed for indications that an impairment loss previously recognised may no longer exist. An impairment charge is reversed if the cash-generating 
unit’s recoverable amount exceeds its carrying amount.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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i.	 Intangibles										        

Goodwill				  

Goodwill represents future economic benefits arising from a business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognised. Refer 
to note 1(c ) for information on how goodwill is intially determined.  Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Refer to note 1 (i) for 
impairment testing procedures.				  

Other intangible assets					   
Research and development 					   
Expenditure during the research phase of a project is recognised as an expense when incurred. Development costs are capitalised only when technical 
feasibility studies identify that the project will deliver future economic benefits and these benefits can be measured reliably. 			 
Development costs have a finite life and are amortised on a systematic basis matched to the future economic benefits over the useful life of the project

Trademarks and licenses					   
Trademarks and licenses are recognised at cost of acquisition. Trademarks and licenses have a finite life and are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortisation and any impairment losses. Trademarks and licenses are amortised over their useful life of 5 years. 		

Acquired intangible assets			 

Customer lists, Brands, Non compete and intellectual property intangible assets recognised in a business combination that qualify for separate 
recognition are recognised as intangible assets at their fair values. (see note 1 (b)). These intangible assets are amortised over their lives based on future 
cash flow forecasts. The following useful lives are applied:				  

- Customer lists: 5-10 years				  

- Brands: indefinite useful life				  

- Non compete agreement: 5 years				  

- Intellectual property: 15 years			 

Residual values and useful lives of other intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. In addition they are subject to impairment testing as 
described in note 1 (h).					   
Amortisation has been included within Depreciation and amortisation expense. 				  

j.	 Foreign Currency Transactions and Balances								      

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian dollars (AUD), which is also the functional currency of the parent company.

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency of the respective Group entity, using the exchange rates prevailing at the 
dates of the transactions (spot exchange rate). Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the re-
measurement of monetary items at year end exchange rates are recognised in profit or loss.		

Non-monetary items measured at historical cost are translated using the exchange rates at the date of the transaction (not retranslated). Non-monetary 
items measured at fair value are translated using the exchange rates at the date when fair value was determined.		

In the Group’s financial statements, all assets, liabilities and transactions of Group entities with a functional currency other than the AUD (the Group’s 
presentation currency) are translated into AUD upon consolidation. The functional currency of the entities in the Group have remained unchanged 
during the reporting period.			 

On consolidation, assets and liabilities have been translated into AUD at the closing rate at the reporting date. Income and expenses have been 
translated into the Group’s presentation currency at the average rate over the reporting period. Exchange differences are charged/credited to other 
comprehensive income and recognised in the currency translation reserve in equity. On disposal of a foreign operation the cumulative translation 
differences recognised in equity are reclassified to profit or loss and recognised as part of the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill and fair value 
adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity have been treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated into AUD at the 
closing rate.				  

k.	E mployee Benefits										        

Provision is made for the Group’s liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to balance date. Employee benefits that 
are expected to be settled within one year have been measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. Employee benefits 
payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of estimated future cash outflows to be made for those benefits. Those cash 
outflows are discounted using market yields on national government bonds with terms to maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows.		

l.	 Share based employee remuneration										        

The Group operates equity-settled share-based payment employee share and option schemes.  The fair value of the equity to which employees 
become entitled is measured at grant date and recognised as an expense over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase to an equity account.  
The fair value of shares is ascertained as the market bid price.  The fair value of options is ascertained using a Black–Scholes pricing model which 
incorporates all market vesting conditions.			 
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m.	 Provisions										        

Provisions are recognised when present obligations as a result of a past event will probably lead to an outflow of economic resources from the Group 
and the amounts can be estimated reliably.  Timing of the outflow may still be uncertain. A present obligation arises from the presence of a legal or 
constructive commitment that has resulted from past events. Provisions are measured at the estimated expenditure required to settle the present 
obligation based on the most reliable evidence available at reporting date, including the risks and uncertainties associated with the present obligation.

n.	 Cash and Cash Equivalents										        

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, together with other short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

o.	R evenue and Other Income										        

Sale of goods			 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable after taking into account any trade discounts and volume rebates 
allowed.  Any consideration deferred is treated as the provision of finance and is discounted at a rate of interest that is generally accepted in the market 
for similar arrangements.  The difference between the amount initially recognised and the amount ultimately received is interest revenue.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point of delivery as this corresponds to the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership of 
the goods and the cessation of all involvement in those goods.			 

Interest and dividend income			 

Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividend income, other than those from investments 
in associates, are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established. 		

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).			 

p.	 Borrowing Costs				  

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of time that is 
necessary to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred 
and reported in ‘finance costs’ .

q.	 Goods and Services Tax (GST)										        

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the 
Australian Tax Office. In these circumstances the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense. 
Receivables and payables in the Statement of Financial Position are shown inclusive of GST. 		

Cash flows are presented in the statement of cash flows on a gross basis, except for the GST component of investing and financing activities, which 
are disclosed as operating cash flows.				  

r.	E quity, reserves and dividend payments									         

	 Share capital represents the fair value of shares that have been issued. Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares are deducted from 
share capital net of any related income tax benefits. 			 

Retained earnings includes all current and prior period retained profits. Dividend distributions payable to equity shareholders are included in other 
liabilities when the dividends have been approved in a general meeting prior to the reporting date. 		

s.	R ounding of Amounts											         

The Parent Entity has applied the relief available to it under ASIC Class Order 98/100 and accordingly, amounts in the financial report and Directors’ 
report have been rounded off to the nearest $1,000. 				  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     



L
E

G
E

N
D

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 -

 C
O

N
S

O
LI

D
A

T
E

D
 E

N
T

IT
Y

		
	

53

t.	 Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments								      

The following are significant management judgements in applying the accounting policies of the Group that have the most significant effect on the 
financial statements. 			 

Key Estimates — Impairment			 

The Group assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the Group that may lead to impairment of assets. Where 
an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts 
incorporate a number of key estimates.			 

Key Estimates —Business combinations		

Management uses valuation techniques in determining the fair value of the various elements of a business combination. Particularly the fair value of 
contingent consideration is dependent on the outcome of many variables that affect future profitability. 		

Key Estimates- Carbon Tax		

On 8 November  2011, the Commonwealth Government announced the “Clean Energy Legislative Package”. Whilst the announcement provides 
further detail on the framework for a carbon pricing mechanism, uncertainties continue to exist on the impact of any carbon pricing mechanism on the 
Group. In addition, as the Group will not fall within the “Top 500 Australian Polluters” the impact of the Carbon Scheme will be through indirect effects 
of increased prices on many production inputs and general business expenses as suppliers subject to the carbon pricing mechanism pass on their 
carbon price burden to their customers in the form of increased prices. Directors expect that this will not have a significant impact upon the operating 
costs within the business, and therefore will not have an impact upon the valuation of assets and/or going concern of the business.		

The Directors believe that there are no other key estimates or judgements					   
						    
The financial report was authorised for issue on 15th August 2012 by the Board of Directors.

NOTE 2:  REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

	  	 Consolidated Group	
	  2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

a.	O perating activities		

Sale of goods		   103,215 	  87,076  

Sales revenue		   103,215 	  87,076  

					   

b.	 Interest revenue from			 

 - Bank deposits		    224 	  262  	

								      
c.	O ther income			 

 - Other income		   277 	  -  
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NOTE 3:  PROFIT FOR THE YEAR			 

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	  2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

a.	E xpenses			 

Cost of sales		   55,899 	  45,924 

Foreign currency translation losses 		   255 	  693 

Bad and doubtful debts (trade debtors):		   90   	  119 

Bad and doubtful debts (other debtors):		   -   	  302 

Rental expense on operating leases 				  

	 - Minimum lease payments 		   2,616 	  2,379 

Research and development costs		   392 	  210 

Employee benefits expenses		    20,315  	  16,872 

Loss on disposal of plant and equipment		   7 	  35 

Reversal of impairment of investment in associated companies		   -   	  (112)

b.	 Finance costs			 

Interest expense for financial liabilities:				  

	 - Other interest expense		  1,345 	  1,055 

 	

NOTE 4:  INCOME TAX EXPENSE

a.	T he components of tax expense comprise:			 

Current tax 		    4,602  	  3,576 

Deferred tax 	 20	   (289)	  (69)

Adjustment for current tax of prior years		    (121)	  4  

			     4,192 	  3,511  

					   

b.	T he prima facie tax on profit from ordinary activities before  

income tax is reconciled to the income tax as follows:			 

Prima facie tax payable on profit before income tax at 30% (2011: 30%) 				     

- 	 Consolidated group 		   4,088 	  3,449  

Add:				  

Tax effect of: 				     

- 	 Non assessable income		   (83)	  -  

- 	 Other non-allowable items 		    11 	  25 

- 	 Employee share expenses during the year		    24  	  20 

- 	 Prior year under/(over) provision for income tax		    (116)	  4 

- 	 Tax payments in foreign jurisdiction		   234 	  -  

- 	 Tax losses in subsidiaries not recognised		    (6) 	  13  

-	 Tax consolidation impact		  40	 -

			      104  	  62  

						    

Income tax attributable to entity		    4,192 	  3,511  

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations		   4,192 	  3,511 

The applicable weighted average effective tax rates are as follows:	 31%	 31%

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     



L
E

G
E

N
D

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 -

 C
O

N
S

O
LI

D
A

T
E

D
 E

N
T

IT
Y

		
	

55

NOTE 5:  INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KMP)				  

Refer to the Remuneration Report contained in the Directors’ Report for details of the remuneration paid or payable to each member of the 

Group’s key management personnel for the year ended 30 June 2012.					   

The totals of remuneration paid to KMP of the company and the Group during the year are as follows:			 
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

 

Short-term employee benefits		   1,699 	  1,436 

Post-employment benefits		   129 	  116 

Termination payments		  115	 -

Share-based payments		   80 	  61  

			      2,023	  1,613  

The value of options issued to KMP is reported as remuneration during the year of issue and does not take into consideration any vesting 

period attached to those options.  No options were granted during the current financial year.

KMP Options and Rights Holdings									       

The number of options over ordinary shares held by each KMP of the Group during the financial year is as follows: 

	 Balance at 	 Granted as	Ex ercised	O ther changes	 Balance	V ested	V ested	V ested 
30 June 2012	b eginning of 	 remuneration	d uring the	d uring	  at year	d uring	 and	 anD		
	y ear	d uring the year	  year 	 the year* 	 end 	 the year	 exercisable	 unexercisable
						       
Mr Bruce Higgins	  600,000 	  -   	  (150,000)	  -   	  450,000 	  -   	  450,000   	  -   

	 600,000 	  -   	  (150,000)	  -   	  450,000 	  -   	 450,000  	  -    

	 									         	
		  Balance at 	 Granted as	Ex ercised	O ther changes	 Balance	V ested	V ested	V ested 
30 June 2011	b eginning of 	 remuneration	d uring the	d uring	  at year	d uring	 and	 anD		
		y  ear	d uring the year	  year 	 the year 	 end 	 the year	 exercisable	 unexercisablE
									          
Mr Bruce Higgins	  900,000 	  -   	  (300,000)	  -   	  600,000 	  300,000 	  300,000 	  -   

		   900,000 	  -   	  (300,000)	  -   	  600,000 	  300,000 	  300,000 	  -     

* Other changes during the year reflected above includes those options that have been forfeited by holders as well as issued during the year 

under review.					   
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NOTE 5:  INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KMP) (continued)		

KMP Shareholdings					   

The number of ordinary shares in Legend Corporation Limited held by each KMP of the Group during the financial year is as follows:		

	
			   Issued on	  
30 June 2012	 Balance at 	 Granted as	 exercise of	O ther	 Balance 
	b eginning 	 remuneration	 options during 	ch anges	 at year		
	 of year	d uring the year	 the year	d uring the year* 	 end
						    

Mr Bruce Higgins	   3,493,850 	  -   	  150,000 	  -   	  3,643,850 

Mr Ian Fraser	 930,000 	  -   	  -   	  35,000 	  965,000

Mr Bradley Dowe	   60,232,961 	  234,375 	  -   	  869,500 	  61,336,836 

Mr Hamish McEwin	   419,338 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  419,338 

Mr David Humphreys	  311,848 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  311,848 

Mr Robert Watters	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -     

Mr Andrew Hartley	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -  

Mrs Susan Jones	  53,821 	  14,705 	  -   	  -   	  68,526 

	  65,441,818 	  249,080 	  150,000 	  904,500 	  66,745,398 

					   
			   Issued on	  
30 June 2011	 Balance at 	 Granted as	 exercise of	O ther	 Balance 
	b eginning 	 remuneration	 options during 	ch anges	 at year		
	 of year	d uring the year	 the year	d uring the year* 	 end
											         
Mr Bruce Higgins	  2,993,850 	  -   	  300,000 	  200,000 	  3,493,850 

Mr Ian Fraser	 900,000 	  -   	  -   	  30,000 	  930,000 

Mr Bradley Dowe	 59,840,960 	  92,001 	  -   	  300,000 	  60,232,961 

Mr Hamish McEwin	  351,257 	  68,081 	  -   	  -   	  419,338 

Mr David Humphreys	  143,000 	  168,848 	  -   	  -   	  311,848 

Mr Robert Watters	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -      

Mrs Susan Jones	   53,821 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  53,821  

	  64,282,888 	  328,930 	  300,000 	  530,000 	  65,441,818
 

* Other changes during the year refers to shares purchased or sold during the financial year.

Other KMP Transactions			 

There have been no other transactions involving equity instruments other than those described in the table above.  For details of other 

transactions with KMP, refer to Note 30 Related Party Transactions.					   
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NOTE 6:  AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

		  Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

Remuneration of the auditor of the parent entity for:				  

 - 	 Auditing or reviewing the financial report		   200 	  190 

 - 	 Taxation services		  30 	  22  

					      

NOTE 7:  DIVIDENDS								      

Dividends declared during the year:					   

Fully franked final dividend payment (1 cent per share)		   2,172 	  2,169    

Fully franked interim dividend (1 cent per share)		  2,174 	  1,736    

			    4,346 	  3,905    

						    

The tax rates applicable to the franking credits attached to the interim and final dividend is 30%.			 

a.	 Franking credits		

	 The amount of franking credits available for subsequent reporting periods are:	

Balance at the end of the reporting period		  14,274 	  7,222  

 - Franking credits that will arise from payment of income tax		    374 	  2,778    

			    14,648	  10,000 

NOTE 8:  EARNINGS PER SHARE									       

Both the basic and dliuted earnings per share have been calculated using the  

profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent company (Legend Corporation  

Limited) as the numerator, i.e no adjustments to profit were necessary in 2012 or 2011.		

a	T he weighted average number of shares for the purposes of diluted earnings  

per share can be reconciled to the weighted average number of ordinary  

shares used in the calculation of basic earnings per share as follows:	

 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used in basic earnings per share	   217,322,648 	  216,880,952  

Weighted average number of dilutive options outstanding		   27,534 	  172,613  

Weighted average number of shares used in diluted earnings per share.		   217,350,182 	  217,053,565  

		

b	A nti-dilutive options on issue not used in dilutive EPS calculation	  	 450,000 	  450,000 	

 

Options are considered anti-dilutive as they are out of the money.
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NOTE 9:  CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

		  Consolidated Group	
	NOTE S	 2012	 2011 
		  $000	 $000

Cash and cash equivalents include the following components:					   

Cash at bank and in hand		   6,758 	  7,560  	

Short-term bank deposits		   -   	  2,000 	

		  22	  6,758 	  9,560  	

NOTE 10:  TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES							     

Trade receivables		   18,915 	  13,024  

Provision for impairment of receivables	 10a	  (266)	  (284)

			    18,649 	  12,740  

						    

Other receivables		   330 	  324  

Provision for impairment of other receivables	 10a	  (302)	  (302)   

			     28 	  22  

Total trade and other receivables		   18,677 	  12,762  

						    

All amounts are short term. The net carrying amount of receivables is  

considered a reasonable approximation of fair value.	

a.	 Provision for Impairment of Receivables			 

All of the Group’s trade and other receivables have been reviewed for  

indicators of impairment. Certain trade receivables were found to be  

impaired and an allowance for credit losses of $36,000  (2011: $385,000)  

has been recorded accordingly within other expenses. The impaired trade  

and other receivables are due from customers experiencing financial difficulties				  

	  

Movement in the provision for impairment of receivables is reconciled as follows:				    

Balance at 1 July		    586 	  233  

Amounts written off (uncollectable)		   (54)	  (32)  

Impairment loss		   36 	  385  

Impairment loss reversed		   -   	  -   

Balance at 30 June		    568 	  586  

						    

 An analysis of unimpaired trade receivables that are past due is given in Note 31.				  
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NOTE 11:  INVENTORIES	

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 

	 $000	 $000	

Inventories consist of the following:					   

At cost						   

Raw material and stores		   1,778 	  1,472  

Work in progress		   -   	  542  	

Finished goods		   16,354 	  12,764  	

			     18,132 	  14,778  	

 

At net realisable value			 

Finished goods		   611 	  578  	

			     611 	  578  	

			     18,743 	  15,356  	

Inventories written off during the year		   281 	  234 

No reversals of previous write downs were recognised as a  

reduction of expense in 2012 or 2011. None of the inventories  

are pledged as security for liabilities.				  

	

NOTE 12:  OTHER CURRENT ASSETS									      

Prepayments		   568 	  803  	

 



60

NOTE 13:  INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

 

Associated companies	 14a	  -    	 -

						    

a.	 Interests are held in the following associated companies			 

			    	 Carrying amount  
Name	 Principal activities	 Shares	O wnership interest	 of investment
			   2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	  
	  		  % 	  % 	  $000 	  $000 

Unlisted (incorporated in Australia):			    

Radiform Australia Pty Ltd	 Manufacture of heatshrink  

	 electrical cable protection	 Ord	  - 	  32 	  -   	  -   	

								      
				  
						    

Radiform Australia Pty Ltd ceased trading on 12 November 2010.  The remaining assets of the business were subsequently sold and the 

Company was deregistered on 13 December 2011.  The recoverable amount of the investment is nil and the investment continues to be 

carried at zero value. 						    
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NOTE 14:  PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT							     

The Group’s property plant and equipment consists of manufacturing machinery, warehousing, IT equipment and other equipment primarily 

consisting of fixtures and fittings. The carrying amount can be analysed as follows.				  

					   

	 Plant and	 Motor 	L easehold 
	E quipment	 vehicles	 Improvements	T otal	
	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

Gross carrying amount			 

Balance at 1 July 2011	  21,707 	  -   	  1,210 	  22,917  

Acquired through business combination	  144 	  212 	  35 	  391

Additions	  2,036 	  -   	  2 	  2,038  

Disposals	   (216)	  (5)	  -   	  (221)

Balance at 30 June 2012	  23,671 	  207 	  1,247 	  25,125  

Depreciation and impairment			 

Balance at 1 July 2011	  (14,138)	  -   	  (259)	  (14,397)

Disposals	   190 	  -   	  -   	  190  

Depreciation expense	  (1,600)	  (43)	  (103)	  (1,746)

Balance at 30 June 2012	  (15,548)	  (43)	  (362)	  (15,953)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2012	  8,123 	  164 	  885 	  9,172  

Gross carrying amount				  

Balance at 1 July 2010	  20,621    	 -	  930 	  21,551  

Additions	  1,651 	  -   	  280 	  1,931  	

Disposals	   (565)	  -   	  -   	  (565)

Balance at 30 June 2011	  21,707 	  -   	  1,210 	  22,917  	

Depreciation and impairment				  

Balance at 1 July 2010	  (13,075)	  -   	  (160)	  (13,235)	

Disposals	   501 	  -   	  -   	  501  	

Depreciation expense	  (1,564)	  -   	  (99)	  (1,663)	

Balance at 30 June 2011	  (14,138)	  -   	  (259)	  (14,397)	

Carrying amount at 30 June 2011	  7,569 	  -   	  951 	  8,520  	

												          
All depreciation and impairment charges (or reversals if any) are included within “depreciation and amortisation expense”.			 
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NOTE 15:  INTANGIBLE ASSETS

	N ote	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

Goodwill					     

Gross carrying amount			 

Balance at 1 July 		   47,687 	  46,298  

Acquired through business combination	 33	 9,745 	 1,389  

Balance at 30 June		   57,432	  47,687  

Accumulated impairment			 

Balance at 1 July 		    (17,308)	  (17,308)

Impairment loss recognised		   -   	  -   

Balance at 30 June		   (17,308)	  (17,308)

Carrying amount at 30 June		   40,124 	  30,379  
		

The increase in the carrying amount of goodwill results from the acquisition of 100% of the issued capital of MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, 
MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd  and MSS Power Pty Ltd on 1 July 2011  and the acquistion of the business assets of Extreme 
Safety Pty Ltd on  
30 September 2011. 

The acquisition of Extreme Saftey Pty Ltd has been provisionally accounted for at year end with further work required to complete the 
purchase price allocation.		

Impairment Disclosure					   
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units which are based on the group’s reporting segments.
				  
				  
	 2012	 2011		
	 $000	 $000	

 

Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd		  12,047 	  12,047 	

Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd		  19,719 	  18,332 	

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd		  4,169 	  -   	

MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd		  4,189 	  -   	

			   40,124 	  30,379 	

 

The recoverable amount of the cash-generating units above is determined based on value-in-use calculations.  Value-in-use is calculated 
based on the present value of cash flow projections over a 5-year period, plus a terminal value.  The cash flows are discounted using the 
yield of 5-year government bonds at the beginning of the budget period.	

The following assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations:

	  Growth 	 Pre-tax 
	R ate 	 Discount Rate 
	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011

 

Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd	 6.44%	 1.22%	 14.82%	 17.43%

Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd	 3.38%	 4.82%	 14.82%	 17.43%

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd	 8.68%	 -	 14.82%	 -

MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd	 6.09%	 -	 14.82%	 -	

 
Management has based the value-in-use calculation on budgets for each reporting segment.  These budgets use historical weighted 
average growth rates adjusted for current market conditions to project revenue.  The projection period reflects the expected useful life of 
the assets and product lifecycle.  Costs are calculated taking into account historical gross margins as well as estimated weighted average 
inflation rates over the period, which are consistent with inflation rates applicable to the locations in which the segments operate.  Discount 

rates are pre-tax and are adjusted to incorporate risks associated with the segment.				  
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011							     

NOTE 15:  INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Other intangible assets					   

Details of the Group’s other intangible assets and their carrying amounts are as follows:			 

	   	 CustomeR	N on Compete	 Intellectual	  

	 BRAND NAME	R elationships	Ag reement	 Property	T otal
	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

 

Gross carrying amount				  

Balance at 1 July 2011 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Acquired through business combination	  2,000 	  1,417 	  624 	  419 	  4,460 

Balance at 30 June 2012	  2,000 	  1,417 	  624 	  419 	  4,460 

 

Amortisation and impairment							       		

Balance at 1 July 2011	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Amortisation	  -   	  (525)	  (125)	  (27)	  (677)

Balance at 30 June 2012	  -   	  (525)	  (125)	  (27)	  (677)

Carrying amount at 30 June 2012	  2,000 	  892 	  499 	  392 	  3,783 

All amortisation and impairment charges (or reversals if any) are included within depreciation and amortisation.		
Other intangible assets were acquired as part of the acquisition of 100% of the issued capital of MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power 
and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd and MSS Power Pty Ltd on 1 July 2012. Refer note 33 for details. 

Brand Name			 

On acquisition of MSS Fibre Pty Ltd the company secured the exclusive use of the rights and ownership of the MSS Fibre Pty Ltd brand 
name for use in Australia. This brand name is considered key to the ongoing success of the business. 		

The directors are of the opinion that the brand names acquired have an indefinite life. Under Australian Accounting Standards intangibles 
with indefinite useful lives must be tested annually for impairment (see note 15(a)).			 

A relief from royalty discounted cash flow method was used to calculate the capitalised value of the royalty stream associated with the 
brand. This was based on financial forecasts covering a 10 year period with the inclusion of a terminal value. A pre-tax discount rate of 
14.82% was adopted in the calculation.

Customer relationships			 

On acquisition of MSS Fibre Pty Ltd, MSS Power and Fibre Pty Ltd and MSS Power Pty Ltd the company acquired existing customer 
relationships. The customer relationships have been valued by calculating the net present value of the cash flows expected from the 
customers over the customers useful lives. The useful lives range from 5 to 10 years. 		

Non Compete Agreement			 

The non compete agreements in place have a maximum  5 year restraint period from the date of acquisition. The value was determined 
using managments best estimate of the relationships with customers and vendors and their ability to transfer to alternative organisations. 

Intellectual Property		

Specific knowledge and know-how has been developed in-house by MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd for the key products selling at acquisition 
date. The costs accumulated to date have been capitalised and the expected life cycle of these products is 15 years. 			 
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NOTE 16:  CONTROLLED ENTITIES									       

a.	 Controlled Entities Consolidated			 

	 Country of Incorporation	 Percentage Owned (%)*	
	 2012	 2011

 

Subsidiaries of Legend Corporation Limited			 

Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd	 Australia	 100 	  100 

Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd	 Australia	 100 	  100 

IES Investments Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  100 

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  -   

MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  -  

Subsidiaries of Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd			   	

Legend Pacific Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  100 

Legend Tech (Singapore) Pte Ltd	 Singapore	  100 	  100 

Legend Performance Technology (Thailand) Company Ltd	 Thailand	  100 	  100 

Subsidiaries of Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd			 

Cable Accessories (Australia) Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  100 

Cable Projects Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  100 

Subsidiaries of IES Investments Pty Ltd			 

Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  100 

Subsidiaries of MSS Fibre Pty Ltd					     	 

MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd	 Australia	  100 	  -  

* Percentage of voting power is in proportion to ownership	  						    

b.	 Deed of Cross Guarantee			 

Legend Corporation Limited, Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd, Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd, Cable 
Accessories (Aust) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, IES Investments Pty Ltd, Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd, Legend Tech (Singapore) 
Pte Ltd MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd and MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd are parties to a deed of 
cross guarantee under which each company guarantees the debts of the other.  By entering into the deed, the wholly-owned entities 
have been relieved from the requirement to prepare a financial report and director’s report under Class Order 98/1418 (as amended) 
issued by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission.

The consolidated financial report covers the closed group and all parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee. 
	

NOTE 17:  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011		
	 $000	 $000

Current		

Trade payables		  11,343	  6,861 

Sundry payables and accrued expenses		  6,591 	  2,834 

Finance lease liability		  81 	  -    

		  24	  18,015	  9,695  

Non Current			 

Finance lease liability		   47 	  -   

		  24	  47 	  -  

With the exception  of the non current portion part of the finance lease liabilities, all amounts are short term. The carrying amounts of trade  

payables are considered to be an approximation of fair value.

	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     



L
E

G
E

N
D

 C
O

R
P

O
R

A
T

IO
N

 L
IM

IT
E

D
 -

 C
O

N
S

O
LI

D
A

T
E

D
 E

N
T

IT
Y

		
	

65

NOTE 18:  OTHER FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011		
	 $000	 $000
 

Derivative Financial Instruments			 

US Dollar forward contracts		    135 	  2    

			     135 	  2    

											         
The Group uses forward exchange contracts to mitigate exchange rate exposure  

arising from forecast purchases in US dollars. All derivatives are measured at fair  

value. The forward contracts have not been formally designated as hedging arrangements. 

				    	 	
			 

NOTE 19:  BORROWINGS										        

Current					   

Secured liabilities			 

Bank bills	 19b	  2,400 	  2,000  

			     2,400 	  2,000  

						    

Non-current					   

Secured liabilities			 

Bank bills	 19b	   15,375 	  8,875  

			    15,375 	  8,875  

a.	T otal current and non-current secured liabilities								      

Bank bills		   17,775 	  10,875  

		  22	   17,775 	  10,875  

b.	 Bank bills and equipment facilities

Bank bills and equipment facilities have been provided by National Australia Bank Limited.  The Corporate Letter of Offer under which 
these facilities were offered expired on 30 June 2012. Agreement was reached with the Bank on 29 June 2012 to extend the facility. 	

Bank bills, which have been drawn as a source of long-term finance, are provided by the Bank under multiple facilities with an 
expiry date of 30 November 2014.  The bills rollover on the 21st of each month for interest resetting purposes. As at 30 June 2012, 
$8,960,250 of the total bill of $17,774,500 is fixed at 5.2%. The current average interest rate is 4.416% (2011: 5.16%) payable monthly 
in advance.

Bank bills are secured by:		

i. 	 Fixed and floating charges over the whole of the company assets including goodwill and uncalled capital and called but unpaid 
capital together with relative insurance policy assigned to the National Australia Bank Limited given by MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd, 
MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power & Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, Legend Corporation Limited, Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd, 
Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Australia) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, Hendon 
Semiconductors Pty Ltd and IES Investments Pty Ltd.

The following covenants apply to debt facilities provided by the Bank:					   
i.	 Debt Service Cover Ratio			 

	 Debt Service Cover Ratio (DSCR) to be maintained at a minimum of 1.5 times, measured quarterly on a 12 month rolling basis.  
DSCR is defined as  earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) less tax paid, divided by scheduled 
amortisation payments plus interest expense				  

ii.	 Gross Debt to EBITDA Ratio				  
Gross Debt to EBITDA Ratio is to be maintained at a maximum of 3.0 times, measured quarterly.  Gross Debt to EBITDA Ratio is 
defined as total financial debt divided by 12 month rolling EBITDA.			 

iii.	 Gearing Ratio			 

	 Gearing Ratio to is be maintained at a maximum of 45%, measured quarterly.  Gearing Ratio is defined as total financial debt, 
divided by total financial debt plus total shareholders’ equity. 			 

To the date of this report, the company has complied with all banking covenants.				  
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
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NOTE 20:  TAX

	  	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

a.	 Current										        
Income tax payable		   1,318	  2,887  

b.	N on-Current										        
Deferred tax assets comprise:			 

Provisions		    1,732 	  1,466  

Transaction costs on equity issue		    -   	  2  	

Other		   55   	  22 	

			    1,787 	  1,490  	

Deferred tax liabilities comprise: 

Intangibles		  1,135	 -

c.	R econciliations										        
	 i.	 Gross movement					   

	 The movement in deferred tax accounts is as follows:					   

	 Opening balance		   1,490 	  1,397  

	 (Charge)/credit to income statements		    -   	  69 

	 Offset against current provision		   297 	  24 

	 Closing balance		    1,787 	  1,490  

	 ii.	 Deferred tax liabilities					   

	 The movement in deferred tax liability account is as follows:					   

	 Other					   

	 Opening balance		    -   	  21   

		  (Charge)/credit to income statements		    -   	  (21)  

		  Intangible assets		  1,135	 -

		  Closing balance		  1,135   	  - 

	 iii.	 Deferred tax assets					   

	 The movement in deferred tax assets account is as follows:					   

	 Provisions					   

	 Opening balance		    1,466 	  1,276  

	 (Charge)/credit to income statements		    266 	 190   

	 Closing balance		   1,732 	  1,466  

	 Transaction costs on equity issue					   

	 Opening balance		   2 	  54  

	 (Charge)/credit to income statements		   (2)	 (52)   

	 Closing balance		   -   	  2  

	 Tax losses					   

	 Opening balance		   -   	  -    

	 (Charge)/credit to income statements		   -	  107 

	 Offset against current provision		   -	  (107)

	 Closing balance		   -   	  -   

	 Other			 

	 Opening balance		   22 	  88  

	 (Charge)/credit to income statements		  33	  (66)    

	 Closing balance		  55  	  22  
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		  -	 -

NOTE 21:  PROVISIONS											         
	Emp loyee Benefits	T otal
	 $000	 $000

 

Consolidated Group			 

Opening balance at 1 July 2011		   2,462 	  2,462  

Additional provisions		   1,650 	  1,650  

Amounts used		   (1,057)	  (1,057)

Balance at 30 June 2012		   3,055 	  3,055  

		  Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

						    
Analysis of total provisions			 

Current			    2,734 	  1,929  

Non-current		   321 	  533  

			     3,055 	  2,462  

Provision for employee benefits			   	

A provision has been recognised for employee benefits relating to annual leave and long service leave.  In calculating the present value 
of future cash flows in respect of long service leave, the probability of long service leave being taken is based on historical data.  The 

measurement and recognition criteria relating to employee benefits has been included in Note 1k to this report.		

NOTE 22:  ISSUED CAPITAL

		  Consolidated Group	
	 2011	 2010 
	 $000	 $000

 

217,440,928 (2011: 217,041,847) fully paid ordinary shares		   74,230 	  74,135  

The share capital of Legend Corporation Limited consists only of fully paid  

ordinary shares, the shares do not have a par value. All shares are equally  

eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital, and represent  

one vote at the shareholders meeting of Legend Corporation Limited.		
	N o.	N o.

a.	O rdinary shares										        

At beginning of reporting period		    217,041,847 	  216,412,917  

Shares issued during the year:			    

Issued under share based payments	 22c	  249,081 	  328,930  

Options exercised	 22b	  150,000 	  300,000    

Total shares authorised 30 June		    217,440,928 	  217,041,847  
	  
None of the parent entity shares are held by any company in the Group.
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NOTE 22:  ISSUED CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

b.	O ptions										        

i.	 For information relating to the Legend Corporation Limited Employee Option Plan, including details of options issued, exercised and 

lapsed during the financial year and options outstanding at year-end, refer to Note 28 Share-based payments.

i.	 For information relating to share options issued to directors during the financial year, refer to Note 28 Share-based payments.	

c.	E mployee share scheme										        

For information relating to the Legend Corporation Limited Employee Share Scheme, including details of shares issued during the 

financial year, refer to Note 28 Share-based payments.

d.	 Capital Management										        

Management controls the capital of the Group in order to maintain a debt to equity ratio within pre-determined benchmarks, provide the 

shareholders with adequate returns and ensure that the Group can fund its operations and continue as a going concern.	

The Group’s debt and capital includes ordinary share capital and financial liabilities, supported by financial assets.	

Management effectively manages the Group’s capital by assessing the Group’s financial risks and adjusting its capital structure in 

response to changes in these risks and in the market.  These responses include the management of debt levels, distributions to 

shareholders and share issues.			 

There have been no changes in the strategy adopted by management to control the capital of the Group since the prior year.  The 

gearing ratio’s for the year ended 30 June 2012 and 30 June 2011 are as follows:		

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

						    

Borrowings	 19	   17,775 	  10,875  

	 Less cash and cash equivalents	 9	  (6,758)	  (9,560)

	 Net debt per bank covenants		    11,017 	  1,315  

	 Trade and other payables	 17	   18,064 	  9,695  

	 Net debt including trade and other payables		    29,081 	  11,010  

	 Total equity		   58,132 	  52,949  

	T otal capital		   87,213 	  63,959  

 

Gearing Ratio		  33%	 17%
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NOTE 23:  RESERVES									       

a.	O ption reserve										        

The option reserve records items recognised as expenses on valuation of employee share options.				  

		

NOTE 24:  LEASES

	  	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

a.	 Finance Lease commitments				  

Future minimum lease payments at the end of each reporting period under review were as follows:			    

Payable - minimum lease payments					   

 - not later than 12 months		    	    

	 - Lease payments		   88 	  -   

	 - Finance charges		   (7)	  -  

			   81 	  -  

- between 12 months and 5 years		    

	 - Lease payments		   49 	  -   

	 - Finance charges		   (2)	  -    

			    47 	  -    

Motor vehicles are held under finance lease arrangements. The net carrying  

amount of the related assets is $164,000. (2011: $0). Finance leases are  

secured by the related assets held under finance lease. 

b.	O perating lease commitments										        

Non-cancellable operating lease contracted for but not capitalised in the financial statements				  

Payable - minimum lease payments			 

- not later than 12 months		   2,227 	  2,197 

- between 12 months and 5 years		   8,092 	  7,757 

- greater than 5 years		   1,881 	  3,570 

			    12,200 	  13,524	

The property lease which commenced 30 May 2008 is a non-cancellable lease with a 10-year term.  Rent is payable monthly in advance.  

Rent adjustments are performed annually on the basis of a Market Review.  As it is not possible to determine future market rates, minimum 

lease repayments have been calculated on the basis of current rental payments over the remaining period of the lease.  An option exists to 

renew the lease at the end of the 10-year term for an additional two terms of 5 years.				  

					   

	

NOTE 25:  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT ASSETS				  

Estimates of the potential financial effect of contingent liabilities, that may become payable:				  

Related party guarantee provided			    

Legend Corporation Limited, Legend Corporate Service Pty Ltd, Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Holdings) Pty Ltd, Cable 

Accessories (Aust) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, IES Investments Pty Ltd, Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd, Legend Tech (Singapore) 

Pte Ltd, MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd have provided guarantees as 

described in Note 16b Controlled Entities and Note 19b Borrowings.  No deficiencies of net assets exist in the entities concerned at 30 

June 2012.					   
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NOTE 26:  OPERATING SEGMENTS									       

Segment Information											         

Identification of reportable segments									      

The Group has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by the Board of Directors (chief 

operating decision makers) in assessing the performance and determining the allocation of resources.	

The Group is managed primarily on the basis of product category since the diversification of the Group’s operations inherently have notably 

different risk profiles and performance assessment criteria.  Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis.	

Reportable segments disclosure are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are considered to have similar 

economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following;	
– the products sold by the segment;			 

– the manufacturing process; and			 

– the type or class of customer for the products.										        

Types of products by segment											        

Memory Modules and Semiconductors			 

The memory modules and semiconductors segment manufactures application specific memory for information technology applications, 

as well as designs and manufactures integrated circuits, thick film hybrids, and ceramic printed circuit boards for use across industries 

including medical, telecommunications, lighting, automotive and consumer electrical.  Manufacture of these products is performed in 

accordance with customer specifications, requiring a high level of technical expertise.		

Electrical, Data and Communications			    

The electrical, data and communications segment distributes a wide range of house branded electrical connectivity products and tools, 

cable assemblies, data and computer room products.  Products are of a similar nature with the majority of customers being within the 

electrical wholesale or power distribution industries.			 

Basis of accounting for purposes of reporting by operating segments		

Accounting policies adopted					   

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of Directors as the chief decision makers with respect to operating segments 

are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the annual financial statements of the Group.

Inter-segment transaction		

An internally determined transfer price is set for all inter-entity sales.  This price is reviewed six-monthly and reset as required, and is based 

on what would be realised in the event that the sale was made to an external party at arm’s-length.  All such transactions are eliminated on 

consolidation for the Group financial statements.			 

Corporate charges are allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall proportion of revenue generation within the Group.  

The Board of Directors believes this is representative of likely consumption of head office expenditure that should be used in assessing 

segment performance and cost recoveries.			 

Segment assets		

Where an asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives the majority of economic value from 

the asset.  In the majority of instances, segment assets are clearly identifiable on the basis of their nature and location		

Segment liabilities				  

Liabilities are allocated to segments where there is direct nexus between the incurrence of the liability and the operations of the segment.  

Borrowings and tax liabilities are generally considered to relate to the Group as a whole and are not allocated.			 
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NOTE 26:  OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)							     

Segment Information (continued)										        
Unallocated items											         

The following items of revenue, expense, assets and liabilities are not allocated to operating segments as they are not considered part of the 

core operations of any segment;				  

 - 	 finance income and costs;		

 - 	 impairment of assets and other non-recurring items of revenue or expense;		

 - 	 income tax expense;		

 - 	 deferred tax assets and liabilities;		

 - 	 intangible assets; and		

 - 	 discontinued operations.		    									       

There have been no changes from the prior periods in the measurement methods used to determine reported segment profit or loss.		

(i) 	 Segment performance			

	 Memory modules and 	E lectrical, Data and	  
	 Semiconductors	 Communications	 Consolidated Group 	
	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	

 

Revenue			 

Revenue from external customers	  12,553	  17,944 	  90,662 	  69,132 	  103,215 	  87,076  	

Inter-segment revenues	   1,015 	  498 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -  

Total revenue	   13,568 	  18,442 	  90,662	  69,132 	  103,215 	  87,076  	

								      

Result									      

Earnings before interest, taxation,  

depreciation and amortisation	  3,166 	  5,921 	  14,067 	  8,047  			 

Depreciation and amortisation	   (256)	  (270)	  (2,169)	  (1,424)			 

Segment operating profit	  2,910 	  5,651 	  11,898 	  6,623  	   14,808 	  12,275  	

Elimination of intersegment profit							       (59) 	  14   	

Finance income							        224 	  262  	

Finance costs							       (1,345)	  (1,055)	

Impairment of investment in associated companies							        -   	  112  	

Share of net loss of associates							        -   	  (112)	

Profit before income tax							        13,628 	  11,496  	

Income tax expense							       (4,192)	  (3,511)	

Profit after income tax							       9,436 	  7,985  	
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NOTE 26:  OPERATING SEGMENTS (continued)							     

Segment Information (continued)

(ii) Segment assets and liabilities			 
	 Memory modules and 	E lectrical, Data and	   
	 Semiconductors	 Communications	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	

	
Assets				 

Segment assets	  9,605 	  11,469 	  44,004 	  35,532 	  53,609 	  47,001  	

Deferred tax assets					       1,787	 1,490

Intangible assets					     43,907	 30,379  	

Total assets					       99,612 	  78,870  	

Liabilities				  

Segment liabilities	  2,283 	  2,267 	  18,969 	  9,892 	  21,252 	  12,159 

Tax liabilities					       2,453	 2,887

Borrowings					     17,775	 10,875  

Total liabilities					      41,480	  25,921  	

(iii) Revenue and assets by geographical region								      

The consolidated group operates predominantly in one geographical region, being Australia.		

(iv) Major customers					   

The Group supplies one single external customer in the memory modules and semiconductors segment which accounts for 3% of external 

revenue of the Group (2011: 14%), and one single external customer in the electrical, data and communications segment which accounts 

for 20% of external revenue of the Group (2011: 20%).  The next most significant customer in the electrical, data and communications 

segment accounts for 6% (2011: 6%) of external revenue of the Group.					   
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NOTE 27:  CASH FLOW INFORMATION	

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

a.	R econciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with  
Profit after Income Tax										       

Profit after income tax		   9,436	  7,985  

Non-cash flows in profit				  

 - Depreciation and amortisation		   2,424 	  1,694 

 - Net loss on disposal of property plant and equipment		  7 	  35 

 - Unrealised (gain)/loss on foreign denominated balances		   211 	  (416)

 - Employee option expense		  -   	  5 

 - Shares issued to employees	 27b	  80 	  61 

 - Cash received on the exercise of options		   15  	  30 

 - Bad debts written off		   - 	  421   

Change in assets and liabilities, net of the effect of purchase  

and disposal of subsidiaries				    	

 - (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables		   (2,162)	  (177)

 - (Increase)/decrease in current assets		   234 	  (130)

 - (Increase)/decrease in inventories		   (2,161)	  1,027 

 - (Increase)/decrease in deferred tax assets		   (92)	  (210)

 - Increase/(decrease) in trade payables and accruals		  99	  1,971 

 - Increase/(decrease) in provisions		   216	  271 

 - Increase/(decrease) in income tax payable		   (1,745)	  2,098  

 - Increase/(decrease) in deferred tax liabilities		  (203)   	  (21) 

Cash flow from operations		    6,359 	  14,644  

b.	N on-Cash Financing and Investing Activities										        

Shares Issued										       

249,081 ordinary shares were issued to key executives during the year.   
Shares were issued in lieu of cash bonuses and as part of the Group’s  

incentive and motivation scheme for the retention of key executives. 

Acquisitions during the year

The Group acquired MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd  

and MSS Power & Fibre Systems Pty Ltd on 1 July 2011 and the business of Extreme Safety  

on 30 September, 2011. See note 33 for acquisition details.

c.	 Credit Standby Arrangements and Loan Facilities with Banks						    

Credit facilities		   29,500 	  28,200  

Amounts utilised		   (19,497)	  (13,158)

			    10,003 	  15,042  

Major facilities are provided by the National Australia Bank Limited and are summarised as follows:	

i.	 Fully Interchangeable Multi Option / Multi Currency Facility (MOF) of $5 million.  The original MOF was subject to annual review and 
expired on 30 June 2012.  Agreement was reached with the Bank on 29 June 2012 to extend the facility for a further 12 months.  
The MOF includes the following facilities:  

	  - $2.5 million bank guarantee facility					   
 - $2.5 million documentary letter of credit and / or trade refinance facility			 

ii.	 Bank bill facilities with a limit of $21.3 million (2011: $20 million) and an expiry date of 30 November 2014.   		

National Australia Bank Limited will continue to provided finance so long as the Parent Entity and Consolidated Group do not breach 

borrowing requirements or financial ratios as detailed in Note 19.
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NOTE 28:  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS								     

The following share-based payment arrangements existed at 30 June 2012:				  

On 30 November 2007, three tranches of 150,000 share options were granted to a director to accept ordinary shares at exercise prices 

of $0.44, $0.49 and $0.54.  These options are exercisable after 30 November 2008, 30 November 2009 and 30 November 2010, all with 

an expiry date of 20 November 2012.  A further three tranches of 150,000 share options were granted to a director on 24 June 2008 to 

accept ordinary shares at an exercise price of $0.10.   These options are exercisable after 24 May 2009, 24 May 2010 and 24 May 2011, 

all with an expiry date of 24 June 2013.  During the 2012 financial year, 150,000 shares were exercised at $0.10 per share.The options hold 

no voting or dividend rights and are not transferable.  When a director ceases employment the options are deemed to have lapsed.  Since 

reporting date, no director has ceased their employment.			 

All options granted to key management personnel are ordinary shares in Legend Corporation Limited, which confer a right of one ordinary 

share for every option held.

		  Consolidated Group		
	 2012	 2011	
	  	W eighted		W  eighted 
		A  verage 		A  verage 
	N umber	Ex ercise  	N umber of	Ex ercise 		
	 of Options	 Price	Op tions	 PricE 
		  $		  $

Outstanding at the beginning of the year	  600,000 	  0.39 	 900,000 	 0.29 

Granted 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Exercised 	  (150,000)	  0.10 	  (300,000)	  0.10    

Forfeited 	 -   	  -   	  -   	  -   

Outstanding at year-end	  450,000 	  0.49 	  600,000 	  0.39  

Exercisable at year-end	  450,000 	  0.49 	  600,000 	  0.39  

The options outstanding at 30 June 2012 had a weighted average exercise price of $0.49 and a weighted average remaining contractual life 
of 0.7 years.  Exercise prices range from $0.44 to $0.54. The share price at year end was $0.32.				  
Included under employee benefits expense in the statement of comprehensive income is $80,000 (2011: $60,993), which relates, in full, to 
equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

Employee Share Plan					   
The company has established an employee share plan (ESP) by which the Company’s Board may issue shares to employees and executive 
directors of the company or its subsidiaries.

The ESP is administered in accordance with the terms of the ESP rules, which are summarised below:			 

 - 	 Shares may be issued under the ESP at the discretion of the Board to employees and executive directors of the company or its 
subsidiaries upon such terms as the Board may determine, including restrictions as to when shares issued under the ESP can be sold.  
Any proposed issue of shares to executive directors require shareholder approval under the Listing Rules.

-	 The aggregate number of shares on issue under the plan should not exceed 5% of the total number of shares on issue at any time.  The 
number of shares which may be allocated to any one eligible employee shall be restricted so that the eligible employee is able to cast no 
more that 5% of votes at a General Meeting of the company.			 

-	 The company may issue shares under the ESP at a price up to the equivalent of 90% of the weighted average ASX market price for 
shares during the 5 trading days prior to the date of invitation to participate.		

-	 Shares issued under the ESP will be ordinary fully paid shares in the company and from the date of issue will rank equally with all other 
ordinary fully paid shares in the company.				  

-	 Participants must not sell, transfer, assign, mortgage, charge or otherwise encumber a share issued under the plan until the later of the 
following;					   
a)	 for shares issued for nil consideration until such time as the Board may determine in its absolute discretion;			 
b)	 the expiry of any service continuity period specified by the company;					   
c)	 the satisfaction of any performance criteria specified by the company.			

-	 The company may (but is not obligated to) buy-back shares, within 12 months of cessation of employment, at a price equal to the 
weighted average ASX market price for shares during the 5 trading days immediately preceding the date of cessation (or $0.01 in the 

case of no cash consideration).				  
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NOTE 28:  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (CONTINUED)	

Employee Share Plan (continued)		

	 Number of shares 	 Fair value at issue	 Fair value at issue 
	g ranted	d ate (per share)	d ate (aggregate)	  
		  $	 $000	

 

16 March 2004 - issued	  2,187,000 	  0.59 	 1,290 

22 November 2004 - bought back	  (15,500)	  -   	  -   

10 December 2004 - issued	 100,000 	  0.53 	 53 	

30 June 2005 - issued	 855,000 	  0.60 	 513 	

21 October 2005 - bought back	  (10,500)	  -   	  -   	

29 March 2006 - bought back	  (46,000)	 -   	 -   	

22 December 2006 - issued	 268,000 	  0.775 	 208 	

26 August 2009 - issued	 462,863 	  0.092 	 43 	

16 August 2010 - issued	 196,883 	  0.164 	 32 	

30 September 2010 - option exercised	 300,000 	  0.100 	 30 	

3 November 2010 - issued	 92,001 	  0.164 	 15 	

29 March 2011 - issued	 40,046 	  0.340 	 14 

6 September 2011 - option exercised	  150,000 	  0.100 	 15 	

1 November 2011 - issued	  234,375 	  0.320 	 75 	

18 April 2012 - issued	  14,706 	  0.340 	 5 	

Total issued	  4,828,874 			 

NOTE 29:  EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no events between 30 June 2012 and the date of these financial statements which necessitate adjustments to the 
statements of financial position and comprehensive income at that date.
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NOTE 30:  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

	N otes	 Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

Transactions between related parties are on normal commercial terms  

and conditions no more favourable than those available to other parties  

unless otherwise stated. 

			 

Transactions with related parties:				  

a.	 Director-Related Entities										        

Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd leases a number of properties  

from the Backstop Property Trust, which is owned and controlled  

by Bradley Dowe.  Lease charges for the year were:		   144 	  156  

Leasehold improvements made by Legend Corporate Service Pty Ltd  

to properties leased from Backstop Pty Ltd totalled:		   -   	  280    

 
NOTE 31:  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT RISK								      

The Group’s financial instruments consist mainly of deposits with banks, short-term investments, accounts receivable and payable, loans to 

and from subsidiaries, bills and leases.					   

The committee’s overall risk management strategy seeks to assist the consolidated group in meeting its financial targets, whilst minimising  

potential adverse effects on financial performance.

The committee operates under the direction of the Board of Directors.  In conjunction with the committee, the Board reviews the current  

strategies on a regular basis, including the use of hedging derivative instruments, credit risk policies and future cash flow requirements.	

Specific Financial Risk Exposure and Management				  

The main risks the Group is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.	

a.	 Interest rate risk					   

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at reporting date whereby a future change in 

interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair value of fixed rate financial instruments.  The Group is also exposed to earnings volatility 

on floating rate instruments.					   

The Group’s policy is to minimise interest rate cash flow risk exposure on long term financing using a blend of fixed and floating interest rate 

debt.  As at year end $8,960,250 is fixed at 5.2% pa and the remaining floating.  Quarterly amortisation of the bill facility includes reduction 

of both the fixed and floating proportion. Fixed rate debts matures on 30 November 2014. 			 

b.	 Foreign currency risk			 

Exposure to fluctuations in foreign currencies arises from the Group’s overseas sales and purchases, which are primarily denominated in US 

dollars (USD).  				  

To mitigate the Group’s exposure, non AUD cash flows are monitored and forward exchange contracts are entered into in accordance with 

the Group’s risk management policy. Due to the nature of USD denominated transactions, being relatively small in size and frequent, it is 

not practical to formally designate forward contracts as hedging instruments, rather management consider these contracts to be part of 

economic hedge arrangements.  The Group continues to assess the use of derivative financial instruments and forward exchange contracts 

to minimise the impact of fluctuations on earnings.				  

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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NOTE 31:  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contINUED)

c.	L iquidity risk			 

Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Group might encounter difficulty in settling its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations 

related to financial liabilities.  The Group manages risk through the following mechanisms:			 
- 	 preparing forward looking cash flow analysis in relation to operational, investing and financing activities				  

 - 	 monitoring undrawn credit facilities									       

 - 	 maintaining a reputable credit profile									       

 - 	 managing credit risk related to financial assets									       

 - 	 investing only in surplus cash with major financial institutions							     

 - 	 comparing the maturity profile of financial liabilities with the realisation profile of financial assets					  

The Group’s policy is to ensure no more than 20% of borrowings should mature in any 12-month period.			

The table below reflects an undiscounted contractual maturity analysis for financial liabilities.  Bank bills have been disclosed in accordance 

with the approved budgeted repayment schedule and facility terms as management do not consider that there is any material risk that the 

Bank will terminate such facilities.  The Bank does however maintain the right to terminate the facilities without notice should the Group 

breach any of the covenants as disclosed in Note 19: Borrowings.				  

Cash flows realised from financial assets reflect management’s expectations as to the timing of realisation.  Actual timing may therefore differ 

from the disclosure.  The timing of cash flows presented in the table to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement 

dates and does not reflect management’s expectations that banking facilities will be rolled forward.				  

					   

Financial liability and financial asset maturity analysis.			 

Consolidated	Wi thin 1 Year	 1 to 5 Years	O ver 5 Years	T otal	
Group	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

Financial liabilities due for payment			 

Bank bills	  2,400 	  2,000 	  15,375 	  8,000 	  -   	  875 	  17,775 	  10,875

Trade and other payables	   18,017 	  9,695 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  18,017 	  9,695

Total expected outflows	   20,417 	  11,695 	  15,375 	  8,000 	  -   	  875 	  35,792 	  20,570  

Financial assets - cash flows realisable			 

Cash and cash equivalents	   6,758 	  9,560 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  6,758 	  9,560

Trade and other receivables	   18,677 	  12,762 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  18,677 	  12,762  

Total anticipated inflows	   25,435 	  22,322 	  -   	  -   	  -   	  -   	  25,435 	  22,322  

 

Net inflow/(outflow) of financial instruments	  5,018 	  10,627 	  (15,375)	  (8,000)	  -   	  (875)	  (10,357)	  1,752 
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NOTE 31:  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contINUED)	

		  Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

d.	 Credit risk analysis										        

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty fails to discharge an obligation to the Group.  

The Group is exposed to this risk for various financial instruments for example by  

granting loans and receivables to customers and placing deposits. The Group’s  

maximum exposure to credit risk is limited to the carrying amount of the financial  

assets recognised at reporting date, as summarised below:			 

Classes of financial assets- carrying amounts:			 

Cash and cash equivalents		   6,758 	  9,560  

Trade and other receivables		   18,677 	  12,762  

Carrying amount		    25,435 	  22,322  

				     

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers and other counterparties, identified either individually or by group, and 

incorporates this information into its credit risk controls. Where available at reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports on 

customers and other counterparties are obtained and used. The Group’s policy is to only deal with creditworthy counterparties. 	

The Group’s management considers that all of the above financial assets that are not impaired or past due for each of the reporting 

dates are of good credit quality.			 

Collateral has been given in the form of personal guarantees and second registered mortgages over the properties of the directors of 

Cabac Electrical Pty Ltd, the acquirer of Legend Tech (RSA) Pty Ltd, which owes Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd an amount of 

$297,000 included in other receivables at 30 June 2012.  There are no other material amounts of collateral held as at 30 June 2012.

Some of the unimparied trade receivables are past due at reporting date. Financial assets past due but not impaired can be shown as 

follows:	

		  Consolidated Group	
	 2012	 2011 
	 $000	 $000

					   

Less than 30 days		    1,635 	  1,230  

30 to 59 days		   546 	  457  

60 to 90 days		   99 	  52  

Greater than 90 days		   60 	  307  

Total		   2,340 	  2,046  

				  

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk with any single counter party, however the top 20 customers of the Group 

represents approximately 54% (2011: 64%) of year end receivables.  The class of assets described as Trade and Other Receivables is 

considered the main source of credit risk related to the Group.			 

The credit risk for cash and cash equivalents is considered negligible, since the counterparties are reputable banks with high quality 

external credit ratings.				  

	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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NOTE 31:  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contINUED)

Fair Value			 

Fair value estimation		

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are presented in the following table and can be compared to their carrying 
values as presented in the statement of financial position.  Fair values are those amounts at which an asset could be exchanged, or a 
liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.  			 

Fair values derived may be based on information that is estimated or subject to judgment, where changes in assumptions may have 
a material impact on the amounts estimated.  Areas of judgment and the assumptions have been detailed below.  Where possible, 
valuation information used to calculate fair value is extracted from the market, with more reliable information available from markets 
that are actively traded.  In this regard, where securities are unlisted and no market quotes are available, fair value is obtained using 
discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.	

Differences between fair values and carrying values of financial instruments with fixed interest rates are due to the change in discount 
rates being applied by the market since their initial recognition by the Group.  Most of these instruments which are carried at amortised 

cost (i.e. loan liabilities) are to be held until maturity and therefore the net fair value figures calculated bear little relevance to the Group. 		

			   2012	 2011		
Consolidated Group	 Footnote	N et Carrying 	 Fair	N et Carrying	 Fair  
		V  alue	V alue	V alue	V alue
		  $000	 $000	 $000	 $000

 

Financial assets				  

Cash and cash equivalents	 (i)	  6,758 	  6,758 	  9,560 	  9,560  

Trade and other receivables	 (i)	  18,677 	  18,677 	  12,762 	  12,762  

Total financial assets		   25,435 	  25,435 	  22,322 	  22,322  

Financial liabilities				  

Trade and other payables	 (i)	   18,017 	  18,017 	  9,695 	  9,695  

Bank bills	 (ii)	   17,775 	  17,902 	  10,875 	  10,857  

Total financial liabilities		    35,792 	  35,919 	  20,570 	  20,552  

The fair values disclosed in the above table have been determined based on the following methodologies:		

(i)	 Cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables and trade and other payables are short-term instruments in nature whose 
carrying value is equivalent to fair value.			 

(II)	 Fair values are determined using a discounted cash flow model incorporating current commercial borrowing rates.  The fair values of 
fixed rate bank debt will differ to the carrying values.			 

Sensitivity Analysis			 

The following table illustrates sensitivities to the Group’s exposures to changes in interest rates and exchange rates. The table indicates 
the impact on how profit and equity values reported at balance date would have been affected by changes in the relevant risk variable that 
management considers to be reasonably possible. These sensitivities assume that the movement in a particular variable is independent of 
other variables

		  Consolidated Group	
	 Profit	E quity 
	 $000	 $000

 

Year Ended 30 June 2012					   

+/- 2% interest rates		   +/- 221 	  +/- 221  

+/- 15% $A/$US		   +/- 1,722 	  +/- 1,722  

Year Ended 30 June 2011					   

+/- 2% interest rates		   +/- 161 	  +/- 161  

+/- 15% $A/$US		   +/- 1,184 	  +/- 1,184 

The percentages have been determined based on the average market volatility in interest and exchange rates in the previous 12 months			
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NOTE 32:  LEGEND CORPORATION LIMITED PARENT COMPANY INFORMATION	

	N otes	 2012	 2011
	 $000	 $000

Parent entity					   

Assets						   

Non-current assets			 

Trade and other receivables		    1,242 	  6,821  

Deferred tax assets		    325 	  325  

Financial assets	 32a	   48,998 	  41,938  

Total non-current assets		    50,565 	  49,084  

Total assets		    50,565 	  49,084 

Net assets		   50,565 	  49,084 

						    

Equity					   

Issued capital		   74,230 	  74,135  

Reserves		   115 	  110 

Accumulated losses		   (23,780)	  (25,166)

Total equity		   50,565 	  49,084  

 

Financial performance			 

Loss for the year		   -   	  (5)

Other comprehensive income  		   1,386 	  1,652  

Total comprehensive income 		    1,386 	  1,647  

		

a.	 Contingent liabilities of the Parent Entity							    

As described in Note 16b: Controlled Entities and Note 19b: Borrowings, Legend Corporation Limited is party to the cross guarantee 

between the wholly-owned entities of the Group under which each company guarantees the debts of the other.			 

						    

	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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NOTE 33:  ACQUISITIONS		

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd		  			 
On 1 July 2011 Legend Corporation Limited acquired 100% of the issued capital of MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd and MSS Power and Fibre 
Systems Pty Ltd. 					   
The acquisition was also made as part of the Group’s overall strategy of expanding its product offerings to electrical wholesale and electrical 
distribution markets.					   

The details of the business combination are as follows:				  
	 $’000	

 

Fair value of consideration transferred					   

Amount settled in cash		   5,750 

Fair value of contingent consideration		   2,750

Total			   8,500 	

					   

The amounts recognised at the acquisition date of the aquirees assets,  

liabilities and contingent liabilites are as follows:				  

Cash			    323 

Trade and other receivables		   1,398 

Inventories		   919  	

Total current assets		   2,640  	

						    

Intangible assets		   3,780 

Property plant and equipment		  290 

Deferred tax assets		   101 

Total non current assets		  4,171 

					   

Trade and other payables		   633 

Borrowings		   429 

Provisions		  182 

Current tax liabilities		   102 

Total current liabilities		  1,346 

					   

Deferred tax liabilities		  1,134

Total non current liabilities		  1,134

 

Net identifiable assets and liabilities		  4,331 

Goodwill on acquisition		   4,169 

Cost of acquisition		   8,500 

						    

Consideration transferred in cash		  5,750

Cash and cash equivalents acquired		   (323)

Net cash outflow on acquisition		  5,427 	 	

								      
Consideration transferred					   

The acquisition of MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd and MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd. Was settled in cash of $5,750,000			 
The purchase agreement included an additional consideration, a final deferred payment no later than 31 August 2012 of up to $2.75 million 
determined as a multiple of Earnings Before Interest and Taxation (EBIT) for the year ended 30 June 2012. 	

Goodwill					   
Goodwill of $4,169,000 is primarily related to growth expectations, expected future profitability and expected cost synergies. Goodwill has 

been allocated to the Electrical, data and communications segment and is  not expected to be deductible for tax purposes.			 
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NOTE 33:  ACQUISITIONS (continued)	 	

Contribution to Group Results			 

MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd contributed $2,025,000 before integration costs and before tax to Group results for the year ended 30 June 2012. 	

MSS Power Pty Ltd								      

On 1 July 2011 the Group acquired the trading assets of MSS Power Pty Ltd.				 
The acquisition was made as part of the Group’s overall strategy of expanding its product offerings to electrical wholesale and electrical 
distribution markets.					   

The details of the business combination are as follows:			 
	 $’000	

 

Fair value of consideration					   

Amount settled in cash		   3,300 	

Fair value of contingent consideration		   2,200 	

Total cost of acquisition		   5,500 	

 
The amounts recognised at the acquisition date of the acquirees assets,  

liabilities and contingent liabilities are as follows:	  

Cash		  	  501 	

Trade and other receivables		   577 	

Inventories		   669 	

Total current assets		   1,747 	

						    

Intangible assets		   680 	

Property plant and equipment		   101 	

Deferred tax assets		   109 	

Total non current assets		   890 	

						    

Trade and other payables		   675	

Borrowings		   178 	

Provisions		   195 	

Current tax liabilities		   74 	

Total current liabilities		   1,122 	

 

Deferred tax liabilities		  204

Total non current liabilities		  204

 

Net identifiable assets and liabilities		  1,311 	

Goodwill on acquisition		   4,189 	

Cost of acquisition		  5,500 	

						    

Consideration transferred in cash		   3,300 	

Cash and cash equivalents acquired		   (501)	

Net cash outflow on acquisition		   2,799 	

Consideration transferred								     
The acquisition of MSS Power Pty Ltd. Was settled in cash of $3,300,000.				  
The purchase agreement included an additional consideration of two deferred payments no later than 31 August 2012 and 31 August 2013 
of up to $1.1 million each determined as a multiple of EBIT for the years ended 30 June 2012. Current EBIT forecasts indicate that the 
company will achieve the required multiples and the full value of the deferred consideration has been included.		

Goodwill					      
Goodwill of $4,189,000 is primarily related to growth expectations, expected future profitability and expected cost synergies. Goodwill has 

been allocated to the Electrical, data and communications segment and is  not expected to be deductible for tax purposes. 	

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012							     
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NOTE 33:  ACQUISITIONS (continued)

Contribution to Group Results								      

MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd contributed $1,133,000 before integration costs and before tax to the Group results for the year ended 30 

June 2012. 

Extreme Safety Equipment Pty Ltd								     

On 30 September, 2011 the Group acquired the trading assets of Extreme Safety Equipment Pty Ltd				  

The acquisition was also made as part of the Group’s overall strategy of expanding its product offerings to electrical wholesale and electrical 

distribution markets.					   

The details of the business combination are as follows:				  
	 $’000	

 

Fair value of consideration					   

Amount settled in cash		  1,000	

Fair value of contingent consideration		  992	

Total cost of acquisition		  1,992	

						    

Recognised amounts of identifiable net assets					   

Inventories		   621 	

Total current assets		   621 	

 

Goodwill on acquisition		   1,371 	

Consideration transferred								     

The acquisition of Extreme Safety Equipment Pty Ltd was settled in cash for $1,000,000.				  

The purchase agreement included a final payment of $992,000 on determination of asset values to be made by 30 June 2012.	

Goodwill								      

The transaction has been provisionally accounted for at 30 June 2012 with further work required to complete the purchase price allocation.	

				    									 

NOTE 34:  COMPANY DETAILS			 

The registered office of the company is:			 

	L egend Corporation Limited		   

	 1 Butler Drive		   

	 HENDON SA 5014		

						    

		

						    

		

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS			 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2011							     

The principle places of business are:	

	 Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd	

	 1 Butler Drive 

	 HENDON SA 5014

	  

	L egend Corporate Services T/A CABAC 

	 8 Distribution Place 

	 SEVEN HILLS NSW 2147

	  

	 Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd 

	 1 Butler Drive 

	 HENDON SA 5014 

	 MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd 

	 MSS Power Systms Pty Ltd 

	 2/77 Bayfield Road East 

	 BAYSWATER NORTH VIC 3135



DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION							     

1.	 In the opinion of the directors of Legend Corporation Limited:		

a.	 The consolidated financial statements and notes of Legend Corporation Limited are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, 

including				  

i. 	 giving a true and fair view of its financial position as at 30 June 2012 and of its performance for the year ended on that date; 

and	

ii. 	 complying with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting Interpretations) and the Corporations 

Regulations 2001; and 		

b.	 There are reasonable grounds to believe that Legend Corporation Limited will be able to pay its debts when they become due and 

payable.				  

The company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Legend Corporate Services Pty Ltd, Legend Pacific Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Holdings) 

Pty Ltd, Cable Accessories (Australia) Pty Ltd, Cable Projects Pty Ltd, IES Investments Pty Ltd, Hendon Semiconductors Pty Ltd, Legend 

Tech (Singapore) Pty Ltd, MSS Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, MSS Power and Fibre Systems Pty Ltd, and MSS Power Systems Pty Ltd have 

entered into a deed of cross guarantee under which the company and its subsidiaries guarantee the debts of each other.

At the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the companies which are party to this deed of cross guarantee 

will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are, or may become subject to, by virtue of the deed.	

2.	 The directors have been given the declarations required by Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 from the chief executive officer 

and the chief financial officer for the year ended 30 June 2012			 

3.	 The consolidated financial statements comply with the International Financial Reporting standards.		

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.				  

					   

	

Bruce E Higgins		   

Chairman of Directors		   

Legend Corporation Limited 

15th August 2012		  		  	
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






















 


 


 


 








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























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Additional Information required by the Australian Securities Exchange Limited Listing Rules and not disclosed elsewhere in this report is set 
out below.

a) Shareholdings as at 9 July 2012
	
Substantial shareholders

The following were substantial shareholders as at 9 July 2012

Name	N umber of fully paid ordinary shares held	 % held

Dowe Holdings Pty Ltd	 61,334,209	 28.21

Tiga Trading Pty Ltd & Thorney Holdings Pty Ltd &  
Thorney Pty Ltd	 36,850,000	 16.95

Keith Knowles	 12,872,125	 5.92

Voting Rights

Fully paid ordinary shares

The entity has 217,440,928 ordinary shares on issue.      

Subject to any rights or restrictions attached to any class of shares, at a meeting of members, on a show of hands, each member present 
(in person, by proxy, attorney or representative) has one vote and on a poll, each member present (in person, by proxy, attorney or 
representative) has one vote for each fully paid share they hold.

Distribution of equity security holders

Category	 Holders of Ordinary Shares	 % of Issued Capital

1 – 1000	 122	 0.02

1,001 – 5,000	 316	 0.44

5,001 – 10,000	 225	 0.87

10,001 – 100,000	 741	 12.72

100,001 – and over	 121	 85.96

Total number of security holders	 1,525	 100.00

Unmarketable Parcels

	 Minimum Parcel Size	N umber of Holders	U nits

Ordinary Shares	 $500.00 at $0.325/unit	 165	 89,769
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SHAREHOLDER 
INFORMATION

The name of the company secretary is:

Graham Seppelt

 
The address of the principal registered office is:

1 Butler Drive, Hendon, SA 5041  Telephone (08) 8401 9888

 
Registers of securities are held at the following addresses:

Security Transfer Registrars Pty Ltd 
770 Canning Highway, Applecross  WA  6153 
Telephone  (08) 9315 2333

 
Securities Exchange Listing 

Quotation has been granted for all the ordinary shares of the company on all Member Exchanges of the Australian  
Securities Exchange Limited.
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Twenty largest shareholders – ordinary shares as at 9 July 2012

Name	N umber of fully paid ordinary shares held	 % held

Dowe Holdings Pty Ltd	 54,672,560	 25.149

UBS Nominees Limited	 31,371,261	 14.43

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited	 13,005,428	 5.98

National Nominees Limited	 7,986,941	 3.67

Keith Knowles	 6,181,181	 2.84

J P Morgan Nominees Australia Limited	 5,972,565	 2.75

Cornish Group Investments Pty Ltd	 3,500,000	 1.61

Dowe Holdings Pty Ltd	 3,437,900	 1.58

Parks Australia Pty Ltd	 3,339,136	 1.54

MFM Properties Pty Ltd	 2,969,048	 1.37

Backstop Pty Ltd	 2,900,000	 1.33

J and S D Yates	 2,850,503	 1.31

M R and J N Simpson	 2,679,473	 1.23

M and J Potter Pty Ltd	 2,650,503	 1.23

Keith Knowles	 2,040,337	 0.94

UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees	 2,000,000	 0.92

P and J Higgins	 2,000,000	 0.92

J M and Spencer and C J Nelson	 2,000,000	 0.92

Bruce Higgins	 1,875,000	 0.86

UBS Nominees Limited	 1,760,500	 0.81

TOTAL	 155,192,336	 71.37

On market buy-back

There is no current on-market buy back for any of the company’s securities.

Restricted and Escrowed Securities

There are no shares subject to escrow as at 9 July 2012.

b) 	U nquoted Securities as at 9 July 2012
 
Options over Issued Shares

A total of 450,000 unquoted options are on issue to one director under the Legend Corporation Limited employee option plan. Option 
holders will be entitled on the payment of the exercise price per share to be allotted one ordinary fully paid share in the company for each 
Option exercised. Options are exercisable in whole or in part until the expiry date. Any Options not exercised before expiry will lapse.  
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DIRECTORY  
OF OFFICES
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Adelaide 

1 Butler Drive 

Hendon SA 5014

Telephone (61) 8 8401 9888

Facsimile   (61) 8 8244 9520

Brisbane

Unit 4

67 Robinson Road East

Virginia QLD 4014

Telephone (61) 7 3637 5577

Facsimile   (61) 7 3637 5587

Melbourne

Unit 2

4 Garden Road 

Clayton VIC 3180

Telephone (61) 3 8549 7170

Facsimile   (61) 3 9545 3970

Unit 2

77 Bayfield Road East

Bayswater North VIC 3153

Telephone (61) 3 9729 0244

Facsimile   (61) 3 9729 0308

Perth

Unit 2

50 Howe Street

Osborne Park WA 6017

Telephone (61) 8 9464 8400

Facsimile   (61) 8 9242 4433

Unit 3

30 Juna Drive

Malaga WA 6090

Telephone (61) 8 9248 5682

Facsimile   (61) 8 9248 7497

Sydney

8 Distribution Place 

Seven Hills NSW 2147

Telephone 133 122

Facsimile   1300 303 310



C O R P O R A T I O N

www.legendcorporate.com


